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Letter to SharehoLders

2013 marked the fifth year of an extended recession

in the United States In spite of the loss in 2013 of

revenue contributions from the sate of product linc-

American Augers Inc Trencor and Astec Underground

Inc trenchers late in 2012 we were able to maintain

our revenues and grow earnings during 7013 Earnings

from our continuing operations grew from $3Z4210000

to $39214000

We entered the year with strong balance sheet and

looked for acquisitions but were unable to conclude

any during 2013 Our Board of Directors decided to

nstitute quarterly $010 per share dividend which

began at the end of the first quarter of 2013

During the year domestic sales grew from $572522000

to $599054000 and international sales decreased

tiom $363751000 to $333944000 International

sales percentage of total sales dropped fi om 38900

to 35.8o during the year We saw practically no grovvth

in infrastructure spending in the United States and

the uncertainty of future spending made contractoi

reluctant to invest in new equipment To overcome

this we increased our presence internationally byBcnjarrii Bi ock Don Di ock

strategically expanding into new markets We also

developed new products to sell to the infrastructureWe st we to deLiver contmuous
energy and mining industries While we are not losing

increases in sharehoLder vaLue focus on infi astructure equipment we are trying to

through stabLe Lon term growth become less dependent on highway spending as the

in earnings por share To that Governments ability to fund infrastructure continues

to be uncertain On the positive side we are seeingend we pLan to expand and
number of states increase their gas taxes and fund

enhance the scope and profit
ing with less dependence on the Federal Highway

hihty nf nur core businqs
Trust Fund

through internaL growth and

st ategic quisitions



In the meant me we are develop ng and iiproving our

equpment for the energy ard minng business We

have successfully sold umber of our 500K oil and

gas dnlling rgs pump tralers hot water heaters for

fracking and therma oi heaters for natural gas proW

cessing On the renewable side of the energy business

we have completed installation of the first line of

large wood pellet plant for FRAM RenewaOie Fuels in

Hazleburst Georgia The plant was sta ted at the end

of the year and the customer has given us the order

for two additional ines to go with the plant We are

optim st we will sell add tional pellet plants 2014

based on the performance of this fac lity

In the ning segment we are constructing manu

factur ng facility to fabricate crushng ard screening

equipet Brazl This par should be operatoral

during the second half of 2014 We are also developing

the TSeries cone crushers at Telsmith Inc The large

900 horsepower unit nished and is being proto

typed at ths me We see growth in track mounted

crushers and screens both in units we sd through

our Aggregate and Mining Group and unit machines vie

sd to other OEM to mount on their track chasss

These highly mobile un ts are changng the landscape

of ush ng equ pment the Urited States as mel as

other countr es around the world To oar surprise

these units are also being used in rrany mining appl

catons particularly f0r opemng new tes and for

mainta ring leases on exist rig sites

Through our RO effmts the asphalt side of the

busness ie have develaped equprrent that vill

allo ou customers to prod ice up to 70 ecycled

mate ai tr gb ou existirg Ouuble Bael ac bt es

Vile have so dove oped row 100 recycle plant

Larlson Pavi oducts In has successfully designed

ad ma eted Ii of iimercial payers ann is gro

ng that bus ness Road cc inc is expanding tt

European rr arket its product lires and we con

ue tu educe em oducts from ou do estc

em an cc ito ia ke Aste Aust

st cr mdi ant 20 tu te

ii grrar5e em

We are investing in our international sales effort in

all of our comparies We also remain diligent with

our focus groups lean manufactur ng and safety

nitatives

Per our previously announced succession plan stepped

down as CEO of the Company effective January 20114

rerr with the Company as Chairman of the Board

In my new role will mentor our new CEO and COO

wh Ic continuing to be active in our RD and sales

efforts Our new President and CEO is Benjamin Brock

Ben who has been wth the Company for over 20

years most mcently as Pies dent of the Astec Inc

operation and as Group President of the Asphalt Group

Also changing roles as result of our succession

planning Norman Smith Norm Norm stepped

doNn as President and Chef Operatng Officer of the

Company Norm is now Vice Chairman of the Board In

his new role he will remain Group President of Mobile

Asphalt Paving and continue to be active in sales Our

new Executive Vice President and COO Richard

Oorris Rick who has been in the asphalt equipment

industry for over 30 years and previously served as

President of Heatec Inc and Group President of the

Energy Group

JJith the succession of these two men along th

retrements in other areas we noiv have five recently

appointed presidents effective January 2014 We are

extremely pleased that all of the new subsidiary pres

dents as well as our new CEO and COO have come

from thin the Co npany Over the last forty years it

has beer imy desre to net ony grow the Company but

to also grow the management team is extremely

resia ui tu see us Idve sus e5siu piai place

crc vecaipronotefoYwt nourexstngorga

nzatioil Tb oup of nd vduals Nill continue to

ma nta our core values and focus on the growth of

our compa es thmug ovatye id iew product

developr coupled vith ndustry lead ng custon er

cc vice We believe that our ew execut ie manage

tient ea is wel seaso ed and prepared to take the

Company the iex evel he sOIls that Nor



And whie am also btessed to have the ultmate good
foune or alhrg that carte person my father tam atso

tnankf for st org groun cf outs dmct that

ccutedar tcrs8c cccsio pa rgp ocso
the .ast several yea Astec fort mate to have

strong buard cf rectors strong mar agemeot teart

and strong assocrates throughout the 17 thversfied

vsrons that make uo our Compa iy

So hem do we go fror he Our goal to gro ifs

Compary srateg cally tbrogh cx st rg ors tma

kct share ga cc and new product development aLong
tb aqu tions tt dus es nat ru ren ly

ser cf as cture energ mi

Our cor panes are eli post oned North me car

nr et yet sese alst lha eopportu tes ogro We
omieuaa es csdm dtnro tcre

of orth %mc oth or all of

groups cc ur goaL aO do est uO
at oral revenu spht ii years add or we

rema Ia our efforts create ne products to

cmome needs and heLp then to be sucLessful

vif at they do As an example cc be sp ay ng
ew moducts at if Cor Eypo cho March th jpr

We drd rot comp etc any acouistons 203 We IL

ork to do so 2014 Acqurs ons ore not ego dnver

sow oil ncqu hr ca8tratCcft th
our ho8 cress id our core alues

Thank you rur tar ng tne umu to rcao tnis ette and

thank you for your support as we move ahead to grov

Inmrany ecc best jet to rmme

8cr Brock

President Cf rfExecutrtie Officer

nth

app to oe re as yecrs jrr jar

ze LO rca rs dIE LL CS

ckCs dd he mo fo
erw

reL er usrasuc uiv uuots ak our Curt oany to tee

rcst eve ad ye suppo tIle effu

Regard tt topic of support ant to take ths

opp tn tj to ttark at ur Shorenlde for

tile support ove the twenty-seven veers that our

Currpany ias been public wil cont nue to be an

act ie part of our Boa of rectors while also being

Don Brock

Cha rrnan of the Board

Astec ndustries nc

th ute the nec

or ustec loustr es nc

past 40 yeam to face

Dr Do Broc vo
also tp re art of the Board Psec as
arso been blessed to ha successfully gro to nearl

81 bllio annual revenus under his gudarce





and Markets

hdve ie most ea ye ano nnovative gi icer groups

ard su ty of these ta er ted inoia daals we are abie to cost rualty

roducts and in developing new products to met the needs of customers

Aec ndustries also acttvely seeks to find nev opportun es vhere our

ed new anc nnomt va to other indsstr Cs

With the heaviest components th comrrerc al class market the Car son

CE 100 hr ngs owr ers longer fecycle the nate at ancl systs Easy

access for adustments and remote greas ng stat ons ma ma nterance

qu ck and simple Wth one piece construct on that includes the track

frames the platform of the CE 100 Ii outlast and outperform any paver

in its weight class

The Roadtec SX-Be cx soil stabilizer reclaimer features cleanrunr ng

755 hp 553 kW CAT C18 engine is the argest isost powerful mode the

comoany Une of stab zersrecla rrers The Si48e/ex romp ies th

er rr snd Stags em ss 01 ste ida is eigh ng at dPb rex matey
7S000rbs 340O g\ thn Be sbaarceeanduo erf Fii ci tng

aeeos ard ra flush ca ov su to sc 5X8r cx

c1ec rc cd tsb cu vez ng orco cI ng

tec eurdi earing rtatemc the art od pcbet rlar et
ur be cr dustry sts p0 sed to barge he voo ow oda on

racstrj moduis ce vth ew sates ara resa ir tere

be ng ver few rts the oces crc any sou pmw fa car shut

tbeertrn san dorm ft mcsto ero antr air gn c0ic Penn

otala tsiu dov ma50PHPstecpiart yeroutagemeans eplait

so tnuesto pera eattU TH fac Je va veryfrm reas vh the

-art Id be wm etei a0 or ma

ybeo fo cd e-j
tpr i.npc Rein gn rerh er Jn- rr

Breaker Tech io ogy Mine Ar 1cr odcrr day sul on fo fufu

focused mi ing operaior mmea at safety tower emiscbns anu mcreased

product Not be confuses cssto ii zed road oh geser

cc pecamer eW sekuiserhasH au cWbeei -0 isotors

orovdnggreate pover arde tidec rain ewr ea due cc Ii4i

VU po er nd bra tic kc to ca rc as ng

passe ge saf Qesg vfthoneot cr1 o.fg ate

er U- ter Ce ne meets ard exeeds al stard rds
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The GEFCO 500K is the most advanced and easy-to-operate rig the world

The safe efficient operation keeps your 23 man crew out of danger zones

Only ten toads for the rig power packs Drllers Cabin and Pipe Handler makes

for fast mobility fast rig up and fast ng down white leaving small footprint

The GEFCO 5001 has hook toad of 500 000 lbs 226 Tonnes The Top Head

Drive Rack Pinion ng also features Slip Spindle prolonging the life of the

pipe threads The GEFCO 500K is equipped with Self-Erecting Drillers Control

Cabin Hydraulic Wrenches for Make Up Break Out Drillers Cabin operated

Pipe Handling System 27 in 698 mm Master Bushng and Accommodates

Range III Drill Pipe as welt as Drill Collars Casing to 20 in SOB mm

KP1-JCI and Astec Mobile Screens has released the Global Track GT16SDF for

contractors and producers seeking rugged mobile screening tool in hghly

portable configuration The GT165DF screening plant was designed as tool

for overburden to scalp ahead or behind of primary crusher as well as

screen wide array of materals from aggregates to recycle to organic

materials The large load ng hopper with ia iable speed feeder can with

stand heavy loads while metering feed mater at to the screen to opt mize

screeni ig production and eff ciency
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Aggregate and

Mining Group

Mine Quarry and

Constructon Equipment

Rockbreaker Systems

Hydrauhc Breakers

Mobde Rockbreakers

Dedicated Scalers

Underground Uthty

Veh des

Demol on and

Construction

Atta me nts

Breaker Technology
cu

Infrastructure and Mining

Breaker Technology BT has been manufacturer

of wide range of minng quarry and construction

eqLnpment since 1958 BT specuabzes in hydraulic

breakers and stationary rockbreaker systems for

breaking oversize rocks at pnmary crushers grizzlies

drawpmnts and stopes BTI taking reach to the

extreme with ts new TRX Senes Rockbreaker System

epresenting our 000th Boom System produced The

NTE Se es Rockbreaker System the 5th generatjon

of small booms from BTI With enhanced coverage and

larger breaker capability this boom has an optimzed

structural design Robust connections mproved ped

estal mounting and common cyl nders make for

mauitenance friendly boom system

BTI also produces full ne of rugged low profile

undergrourd utilty vehicles for the mnng sector

nd ang mob rockoreake sca ers sc ssors hfs

crane trucks lube trucks ANFO loaders shotcrete

mxers and placers cassette systems and personnel

vehicles Our all new Mne Runner all purpose vehicle

modern day soluton for Future focused mng

operaton aimed at safety lower emismons and

increased productwty

We recognzed as leader global mm ng 2pd

nuar markets BT offers unparalleled experience

ri prod ct ri poort thrn sgh it5 rtwnrk nf tratpg

cal locatec nternatonal strbutors When our

jobs become bigger and results become tougher to

achieve rely or BTI to contnue to exceed your needs

lrfras ucua

11
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KoLbergPioneer nc

Infrastructure and Mining

Kolberg onee ic KP uorldwde leader in ma
ufactur ng qupment for ie aggregate construct on
oav ng and recycl ng ndustries As an nnoative

hgh integdty manufacturer KP develoos quahty

state ofthe art products and has the abihty to eng
neer custo products because of ts Vghly qual fed

eng neering staff

rjlarueted wde tke ad Asec MobTh Screers

brand Kolberg Poneer Inc desgns ma ufactures

and markets full of ashing conJeyng crushng

screenmg classify ng and potable and mob to ant

equipment For more than 73 years KolbergP oneer

products and ts dedmated KPI JO and Astec Mobile

Screens dea er network have beer recog zed tftn

the aggregate and ecycl ng ndustnes as suppl ers of

dependable equp ilent and exper enced appl cat on

over ted support

2013 Kolbe Po eer rc rolled oia0ons

mpro erlerts at omded customers

vit the tota solut or for 5L ccessful operat ors

New oduct nnovat ons ncwde tI new 170 ong

SupeStacke new genera mn Vanguard Jaw

Cmsher th op ons tramo ron eief syste tie

cv gere at in Jofa Tr UT 25 cr sr
the Sw es 9000 Do ate ng 5cr er ese ad accs
r1emortrate he err aws oiaced or orodt ct ne

versA cc norket dee oome lt ie

as comIC comm to Jroj rg cor pee
agg eg sot 13 KP Astec ob Ic

Sc cens us so cont ct Nava Fac

tesE geo rgnoxedto kuSafa
NP IFAC 11/C rta siste 15

be viS we ddc ltlcCsa 1CS

Aggregate and

Mining Group

Mater at Hand mg

Equ pment

Crushing Equ pment

Screening Equipment

Track Mount Equipment

Washmg and ClassAy

Equp ew
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Astec MobiLe Screens nc
li

infrastructure and Mining

Astec Mobile Screens Inc is the world premier sup
plier of innovative screening solutions The full line of

prodUcts includes mobile screening plants portable

and stat onary screen structures and high frequency

screens for the quarry recycle sand and gravel and

other material processing industries Operat ng con
dit ons for the mater al prod jcer can vary and Astec

Mobile Screens responds by offering broad range of

operating systems

In 2013 Astec Mobile Screens continued to broaden

the Global Track product line by launching the GT14SS

and the GT16S screen plants Astec Mobile Screens also

introduced new high frequency screen designed for

the industrial sands market The new high frequency

screen for the ndustrial sands market is redesigned

version of Astec Mobile Screens original Var -Vibe

High Frequency Screen Engineered to be versatile

screer the nigh fwquency scree des gred to oper
ate ii numerous ma kets includng fractionated

redo med asphalt pavement FRAP wood pelleting

ard now ndustrial sands Astec Mob Ic Screens con

tinues ts focus on the ever-growing RAP market th

the ProSizer which uses the Var-V be screen to

separate RAP lhngs

Astec Mob Screens also recently co npleted an

extensive renovat on adding much-needed snoc to

the fac ty to accommodate the company gro vth

Ener frr

Aggregate and Muning Group

Mob Ic Screenng

Pants

Portable Screening

clants

Stationary Screen

Structures

High Frequency

Screens



Equpamentos Ltda

infrastructure and Mining

Astec do Bras Fabr cacao do Equ panetos Asec

do Brasl begac is opeaAons 2011 by rescll rg

eqwpment ar spare parts for TelsmAh KP JCI Astec

oore 3cree is BT ope d0oi ii Astec

do ask statg to assebLe the Vst csbe

azk Du 201L4 Astec do Bazk looks forward to

start ng operatwns cv acihty of aporox mately

300 and arounc 120 up oyees
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Portable Asphalt Plants

Relocatable Aspkal

Plants

Statiorary Asphalt

Plants

Soil Remedation

Equipment

Wood Pellet Process ng

Plants

LhLL iiar Equ orni

-J

Infrastructure and Energy

Astec Inc continues to be world leader in Hot and

Warm Mix Asphalt HMA/WMA equipment technology

5L pport and training and renowned for excellent

customer service and nationv ide parts and service

teams Astec offers complete Inc of portable reo
ratable and stationary asphalt plant eouioment pro

duced under the Astec and the Dillman brands In

addition Astec also manufactures soil remediation

equipment and wood pellet processing plants Core

products nclude the Double Barrel Drum Mixe TO

PC-based computer control system the Phoenix

burner series Pack Portable Asphalt plants and

New Generation long term Storage Silos

In 2013 Astec achieved ts goal of seeing the first Astec

V11ood 0e et Diarf 5eg ooduto Th5 gn
cant new product and new ndustry for Astec Th

groundbreaking state of the art wood pellet plant

features unque modular design with replicated par

allel nes Astec is very excited about the potential

for this new product line and is very pleased to have

orders for this plant

Astec cont jes to ovate and meet he hallenges

that face the industry 2013 Astec brought to mar

ket -e f-Pack stacx tempeaum cotroi syste

vl ch ielps control plart exhaust temperatu wh Ic

ncreas ng efficiency wher runmng wide range of

rr types Astec also developed concept for High

RAP Double Barrel option with the first retrofit vers

currentj operaton

Aster co ti iues to gi ow aid ia ntai custome loyalty

throuk novat ye equipment des gn industrk lead

custo tea sa ti art tchncal

educa io

Asphalt Group



infrastructure and Energy

Heatec makes sells aid servmes broad Une of eat-

qu storage tanks and re ated proc These

products are used iost faml of produce

aid manufactjrer Ke7 ucers are hot mu aspha

HMA ants asphalt term ir als cmi Is on termnals

and concrete orodacers Otuer ea users nclude

and gas prod jcers rhemma orod cc food orodu

ers roof ng manufactwers power plarts etc

Heatec heavily nvoIved ng Iew asphalt

storage term ra and emu or pi rts fhe company

does ma or mechan ca dos gn and electrnca eng eec
Sys ci

rg wo for tresc fam es and Ms much cft Ic

eq p-er neaepcye oerd gs 5erua
us rrtcn as3rrDo

Mod ci Ps hal Cer icr 0e ccmoaiy als ass

te Is

are Cj
noi 4ra ea ce ga

st ca 1uce ore

gcPatEas the gasa

eae_ op ovdrwrge cave our rcat fa you

at de ccc by /istr

Asphalt Oroup

Hot Heaters

Polyre Bftidrg







Asphalt Rubber

Be dirgSyste

Hot Heaters

infrastructure and Energy

CCI Ente ses founded ll 1969 well known mar

ket leade in product on desgn and serv cc of asphalt

heating storage systems asohalt rubber blendng

systems and hardl ng systems The company

product offerings extend well beyond As core market

of hot mx aspralt rto other irdustr es including oil

gas of ng cerrca orocessng and dustr al

fabncation

Based AlbuqL que New Mexco CEI regularly meets

the challenges of desgning production eqmpment to

meet ncreas ng stn lgent quality regulat ons

cc ne ca tJest The esourcefu ness and adapt

abA ty of CE eng ocr ng manufacturing capabb

lbs cave opeJed CE to the fo efro of produc ng

hghe5fcen ow em ss on equp ient 2013 CEI

expanded prod mt Une to ncli do turn key asphaA

emumson plants od ona types of producto acrl

en Fo yea

CEI et cader asohalt rubber blend ng

systems These systems ut Ize ound rubber from

recycled res blendeo qu asphal to produce

better qual ty safe and longer ast ng roads CE

asp alt syste among the nost techno

og cnliy adva ceo owestemss easest Jse

and boo supported the wo Id

uraducs ubu tre ut aates bot

an fe te us stomge talks for qud asp talt

ie emmsonscont olequ Jn-ent

Asphalt Group

Hea 5ue Preheaters

Emmsion Coutrol

Cqu pmert

qu Add me Systems

Conc etc Plarts
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Fon de1 1981 Roadtec Inc Roodtec began as

ifctu aoEatpavers Today RoadtecoCfe
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lrfrastructure

Photos

Asphalt Paving Screeds

Commercial Class Asphalt Payers

Jindrow ck Up achnes

Carison Paving

Car son Paving Products the leade screed technol

ogy for ove 25 years contmues its upward march

the highway class asphalt irdustry th ts offe mg of

seven individually unque highway class screeds ard

the abhty of beirg attached to hghway class payers

that are built by the sx major tractor manufacturers

the Norld Carsons product bneup has beer able

to mantain dominant market share of the in portant

nfrastructure building community

Engneered desgned bult and supported by the

industry most qualified personnel Carlson products

have been able to domnate very demanding market

segment

Acqm ed by Astec lndustnes 2000 Carlson Pay ng

Products has enioyed cont nued growth nto the com

mercFal pavng market th trio toductor of the ext

generat on of conmercial paver the CPIOO heavy

duty 0eature nch commercal class pa or Car so pro

vides high quabty and longer lfe cicle paver to

very important segment of the ndustry that has been

long overlooked

Car sor ront es to offer industry cad rg attach

ments and nnoiat ons desgncd to mprove produc

ivty safe and durabijtv of roads to the moto ng

public aro iiax rrize roao dollars spert world thde

Vfith unrr arched suppo and technca knowledge

Carlson Pavmg Products and ts customer base of

pang contractors dealers and top OEM paver ra

ufactu iill co iU cc to br ng oiative ar ges

to the aspla ii dustry

Products Inca

Mobile Asphalt Pavng Group
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Flud Pump Trailers

Orfls for Oil and Gas

Water diell Ils

DrRls for Mini Core

Samp es

Infrastructure and Energy

GEFCO world leader the desgn and manufacture

of portable dnlhng gs and elated equpment for the

vater well environmental groundwater monitoring

construction mining and shallow oil gas exploration

and production ndustres Wth two plants located

Enid Oklahoma and Loudon Tennessee our facilities

include fully-integrated machine shops fabricabon and

veld shops assembly pantng and testng faciUtes

The End faclity currently manufactures top head

drive drilling ngs rotary table drilling rigs and the

King Oil Tools product ne

The Loudon fachty currently manufactures the GEFCO

500K vert cal drihing rig and the GEFCO OP 2000 both

products for the ol and gas industry Both locatons

manufacture equ pment that targets mlar markets

and products

For ilore thar 82 years GEFCO has provded rugged

and dependable equ prrent that has been dehvered to

over 100 cour toes GEFCO will contnue ts long tradi
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and sermce available the marketplace Their primary

focus meetrg the needs and expectat ons of the

custoT ers ano tI dustr es that they serve
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Astec Australia PTV LTD

Infrastructure Mnng and Energy

Committed to providing exceptional service and deliv

ering quality equipment Astec Australia PTY LTD

Astec Australia continues to expand operations in

Australia and New Zealand for the Astec Industries

Family of Companies

Achievements for 2013 were the installation of two

full crushing and processing plants for the mining

industry and mobile underground rock breakers for

the precious minerals industry These products con

tributed strongly to the growth of Astecs Aggregate

and Mining Group doubling sales from 2012 that were

double that for 2011 Installations of asphalt plants

and pay ng equipment were achieved throughout the

year maintaining Astec reputation as leading sup

plier in the Australian Asphalt Industry

Astec Australia added service offenngs through the

troduct on of he Astec Asphalt ant Ooerato

Schools These schools facilitated with Astec Inc

are now an extremely popular annual event on our

calendar

Astec AustraLa wi continue to develop opportunities

for the Astec Industries Family of Companies man

tam ng its asphat and pavng pocus while building on

its entry into the aggregate and ning ndustry and

seeking ooportunit es for the Energy Group With

service network now estab in Perth Melbourne

Sydney and Brisba backed up by addit onal ware

houses Pertt id Melbourre Astec Australia well

placed to grow ts after narket business
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Other Group

REPRESENTING

Astec Inc

Astec Underground

Carlsor Pavirg Products

Heatec

CEI Enterprses

KP JC1 and Astec Mobi Screens

Osborn Eng neered Proouct

Roadtec

Telsm th

Breaker Technology



Sc

p1J

Fnr cc Ho

V0 tLoy

vcbe en

arC
cro-- NICE cc

JLr EL

-0

LI

P0

Cr0 Cr31

TUPED ABOdE 0BOV LOT

TOROUT OPTOBOTTOM

01 Bck
-0

OOJE rj_

room

-e

1-

J0EJ iD

io
// Scot

-XL

6E ttvOf

or olo cc

Bak
or cc nfl

Jo strrrrt

JO L0tCOC Inc
No Cu tto

frrnr 3n0
/0

IC

s- Foj0
oFc

PC

II 01JO

Li

/1

010

Jr



FINANCIAL

INFORMATION



SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
in thousands except as noted

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Consolidated Statement of Income Data

Net sales $932998 $936273 $908641 $737084 $698056

Grossprofit1.4 207119 207951 211533 175929 147540

Grossprofit%4 22.2% 22.2% 23.3% 23.9% 21.1%

Selling general and administrative expenses2 133337 136323 132371 109354 100651

Intangible asset impairment charge3 -- -- -- -- 17036

Research and development 18101 20520 20764 15987 16257

Income from operations4 55681 51108 58398 50588 13596

Interest expense 423 339 190 339 532

Other income expense net 1937 1783 1082 632 1118

Net income from continuing operations4 39214 34210 40440 34648 5849

Income loss from discontinued operations

netof tax -- 3401 225 1269 2080
Gain on sale of subsidiary net of tax -- 3378 -- -- --

Net income4 39214 40989 40665 33379 3769

Net income attributable to controlling interest4 39042 40828 40563 33237 3731

Earnings loss per common share4

Net income attributable to controlling

interest from continuing operations

Basic 1.72 1.50 1.79 1.53 0.26

Diluted 1.69 1.48 1.76 1.51 0.26

Income loss from discontinued operations

Basic 0.30 0.01 0.06 0.09

Diluted 0.29 0.01 0.06 0.09

Net income attributable to controlling interest

Basic 1.72 1.80 1.80 1.48 0.17

Diluted 1.69 1.77 1.76 1.46 0.16

$388880 $358536 $333719 $318936 $278721

749291 728783 719481 651549 591564

58051 550734 531298 494276 452923

0.30 1.00 -- -- --

24.99 23.82 23.09 21.63 19.92

12011 Gross profit includes charges of $2162000 related to sale ot
utility product line assets in the Underground Group

22011 Selling general and administrative expenses include an impairment charge of $2304000 related to aviation

equipment classified as held for sale during 2011

2009 includes impairment charges primarily goodwill of $17036000 or $15022000 after tax

4Amounts shown for 2009-2012 have been increased from amounts previously reported in Forms 10-K due to restatement

for an error related to the elimination of intercompany profit on interdivisional sales See Note to the accompanying

consolidated financial statements for additional details

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Working capital4

Total assets4

Total short-term debt

Long-term debt less current maturities

Total equity4

Cash dividends declared per common share

Book value per diluted common share

at yearend4
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SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA
in thousands except as noted

Quarterly Financial Highlights First Second Third Fourth

Unaudited Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2013 Net sales $247833 $248127 $213177 $223861

Gross profit 58567 55442 45787 47323

Net income from continuing operations 13251 11152 6527 8284

Netincome 13251 11152 6527 8284

Net income attributable to controlling interest 13171 11092 6514 8265

Earnings per common share

Net income attributable to controlling interest

Basic 0.58 0.49 0.29 0.36

Diluted 0.57 0.48 0.28 0.36

2012 Net sales $251967 $238275 $218391 $227640

Gross prof iti 59020 53323 47297 48311

Net income from continuing operations1 12293 9741 6633 5543

Income from discontinued operations 234 848 318 5379

Net income1 12527 10589 6951 10922

Net income attributable to controlling interest1 12514 10526 6903 10885

Earnings per common share

Net income attributable to controlling interest

from continuing operations1

Basic 0.54 0.42 0.29 0.24

Diluted 0.53 0.42 0.29 0.24

Income from discontinued operations

Basic 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.24

Diluted 0.01 0.04 0.01 0.23

Net income attributable to controlling interest1

Basic 0.55 0.46 0.30 0.48

Diluted 0.54 0.46 0.30 0.47

Common Stock Price

2013 High $36.99 $35.85 $37.50 $39.01

2013 Low 33.50 30.87 33.15 33.23

2012 High $40.68 $37.12 $34.10 $33.47

2012 Low 32.60 26.48 27.01 26.09

1Amounts shown have been increased from amounts previously reported in Forms 100 and 10K due to restatement of 2012

financial statements See Note to the accompanying financial statements for additional details The quarterly impact of the

restatement is as follows

Gross profit increased by $423000 $262000 $82000 and $245000 in the first second third and fourth quarters of 2012

respectively

Net income from continuing operations net income and net income attributable to controlling interest increased by $269000

$160000 $51000 and $141000 in the first second third and fourth quarters of 2012 respectively

Basic earnings per share on net income attributable to controlling interest from continuing operations increased $0.01 in the

first and second quarters of 2012

Diluted earnings per share on net income attributable to controlling interest from continuing operations increased $0.01 in the

first second and fourth quarters of 2012

Basic earnings per share on net income attributable to controlling interest increased $0.01 in the first and fourth quarters of

2012

Diluted earnings per share on net income attributable to controlling interest increased $0.01 in the first and fourth quarters of

2012

The companys common stock is traded in the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol ASTE Prices shown are the high and low

sales prices as announced by the Nasdaq National Market The company paid dividend of $1.00 per share on its common stock

in the fourth quarter of 2012 on February 28 2013 the Companys Board of Directors approved dividend policy pursuant to which

the Company began paying quarterly $0.10 per share dividend on its common stock beginning in the second quarter of 2013 The

Company paid quarterly dividends of $0.10 per common share to shareholders in the second third and fourth quarters of 2013 As

determined by the proxy search on the record date for the Companys 2014 annual shareholders meeting the number of holders of

record is approximately 300
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve inherent risks and uncertainties

Actual results may differ materially from those contained in these forward-looking statements For additional

information regarding forward-looking statements see Forward-looking Statements on page 59

Overview

Astec Industries Inc the Company is leading manufacturer and seller of equipment for the road building

aggregate processing geothermal water and oil and gas and wood processing industries The Companys
businesses

design engineer manufacture and market equipment that is used in each phase of road building

including quarrying and crushing the aggregate producing asphalt or concrete recycling old asphalt

or concrete and applying the asphalt

design engineer manufacture and market additional equipment and components including

geothermal drilling oil and natural gas drilling industrial heat transfer wood chipping and grinding

wood pellet processing and

manufacture and sell replacement parts for equipment in each of its product lines

The Company has 15 manufacturing companies 14 of which fall within four reportable operating segments

which include the Asphalt Group the Aggregate and Mining Group the Mobile Asphalt Paving Group and the

Underground Group The business units in the Asphalt Group design manufacture and market complete line

of asphalt plants and related components heating and heat transfer processing equipment and storage tanks

for the asphalt paving and other unrelated industries including energy production concrete mixing plants and

wood pellet processing equipment The business units in the Aggregate and Mining Group design manufacture

and market equipment for the aggregate metallic mining and recycling industries The business units in the

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group design manufacture and market asphalt payers material transfer vehicles

milling machines stabilizers and screeds The business units in the Underground Group design manufacture

and market portable drilling rigs and related equipment for the water well environmental groundwater

monitoring construction geothermal mining and shallow oil and gas exploration and production industries

The Company also has one other category that contains the business units that do not meet the requirements

for separate disclosure as an operating segment The business units in the Other category include Peterson

Pacific Corp Peterson Astec Australia Pty Ltd Astec Australia Astec Insurance Company Astec
Insurance or the captive and Astec Industries Inc the parent company Peterson designs manufactures

and markets whole-tree pulpwood chippers horizontal grinders and blower trucks Astec Australia markets

and installs equipment services and provides parts for many of the products produced by the Companys

manufacturing companies Astec Insurance is captive insurance company

The Companys financial performance is affected by number of factors including the cyclical nature and

varying conditions of the markets it serves Demand in these markets fluctuates in response to overall

economic conditions and is particularly sensitive to the amount of public sector spending on infrastructure

development privately funded infrastructure development changes in the price of crude oil which affects the

cost of fuel and liquid asphalt and changes in the price of steel

The Company believes that federal highway funding influences the purchasing decisions of the Companys

customers who are typically more comfortable making capital equipment purchases with such legislation in

place Federal funding provides for approximately 25% of all highway street roadway and parking construction

in the United States

The U.S Congress funded federal transportation expenditures for the fiscal year ending September 30 2011

at the 2010 level of $41.1 billion and it approved short-term funding of federal transportation expenditures for

the six-month period ending on March 31 2012 at the same levels

In July 2012 President Obama signed into law the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act

Map-21 which authorizes $105 billion of federal spending on highway and public transportation programs

through fiscal year 2014 Map-21 was the first long-term highway legislation enacted since 2005 and continued

federal highway and transit funding at 2012 levels with modest increases for inflation Although Map-21 helped

stabilize the federal highway program in the near term the Company believes longer multi-year highway
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

program would have the greatest positive impact on the road construction industry and allow its customers to

plan and execute longer-term projects The level of future federal highway construction is uncertain and any

future funding may be at lower levels than in the past

Several other countries have implemented infrastructure spending programs to stimulate their economies

The Company believes these spending programs have had positive impact on its financial performance

however the magnitude of that impact cannot be determined

The public sector spending described above is needed to fund road bridge and mass transit improvements

The Company believes that increased funding is unquestionably needed to restore the nations highways

to quality level required for safety fuel efficiency and mitigation of congestion In the Companys opinion

amounts needed for such improvements are significantly greater than amounts approved to date and funding

mechanisms such as the federal usage fee per gallon of gasoline which has not been increased in 20 years

would likely need to be increased along with other measures to generate the funds needed

In addition to public sector funding the economies in the markets the Company serves the price of oil and

its impact on customers purchasing decisions and the price of steel may each affect the Companys financial

performance Economic downturns generally result in decreased purchasing by the Companys customers

which in turn causes reductions in sales and increased pricing pressure on the Companys products Rising

interest rates also typically negatively impact customers attitudes toward purchasing equipment The Federal

Reserve has maintained historically low interest rates in response to the economic downturn which began in

2009 however interest rates may increase in 2014

Significant portions of the Companys revenues relate to the sale of equipment involved in the production

handling recycling or installation of asphalt mix Liquid asphalt is by-product of oil production An increase

in the price of oil increases the cost of asphalt which is likely to decrease demand for asphalt and therefore

decrease demand for certain Company products While increasing oil prices may have negative financial

impact on many of the Companys customers the Companys equipment can use significant amount of

recycled asphalt pavement thereby mitigating the effect of increased oil prices on the final cost of asphalt for

the customer The Company continues to develop products and initiatives to reduce the amount of oil and

related products required to produce asphalt mix Oil price volatility makes it difficult to predict the costs of

oil-based products used in road construction such as liquid asphalt and gasoline The Companys customers

appear to be adapting their prices in response to the fluctuating oil prices and the fluctuations did not appear

to significantly impair equipment purchases in 2013 The Company expects oil prices to continue to fluctuate

in 2014 Minor fluctuations in oil prices should not have significant impact on customers buying decisions

However political uncertainty in oil producing countries interruptions in oil production due to disasters

whether natural or man-made or other economic factors could significantly impact oil prices which could

negatively impact demand for the Companys products

Contrary to the negative impact of higher oil prices on many of the Companys products as discussed above

sales of several of the Companys products including products manufactured by the Underground Group

which are used to drill for oil and natural gas would benefit from higher oil and natural gas prices to the extent

that such higher prices lead to further development of oil and natural gas production The Company believes

further development of domestic oil and natural gas production capabilities is needed and would positively

impact the domestic economy and the Companys business

Steel is major component in the Companys equipment Moderate steel price increases occurred during

the fourth quarter of 2013 Steel prices have stabilized in the first quarter of 2014 with moderate demand and

relatively short mill lead times for most products The Company expects steel prices to remain near current

levels in the short term unless there is significant demand increases due to growth in the broader economy It

is uncertain however if these trends will continue throughout the remainder of 2014 The Company continues

to utilize forward-looking contracts coupled with advanced steel purchases to minimize the impact of increased

steel prices The Company will continue to review the trends in steel prices in future months and establish

future contract pricing accordingly

In addition to the factors stated above many of the Companys markets are highly competitive and its

products compete worldwide with number of other manufacturers and dealers that produce and sell similar

products During 2011 and portion of 2012 weak dollar combined with improving economic conditions

in certain foreign economies had positive impact on the Companys international sales In 2013 the dollar
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

strengthened against many foreign currencies which had negative effect on pricing in certain foreign markets

the Company serves The Company expects the dollar to remain strong in the near-term relative to most

foreign currencies Increasing domestic interest rates or weakening economic conditions abroad could cause

the dollar to continue to strengthen which could negatively impact the Companys international sales

In the United States and internationally the Companys equipment is marketed directly to customers as well

as through dealers During 2013 approximately 75% to 80% of equipment sold by the Company was sold

directly to the end user The Company expects this ratio to remain relatively consistent through 2014

The Company is operated on decentralized basis with complete management team for each operating

subsidiary Finance insurance legal shareholder relations corporate accounting and other corporate matters

are primarily handled at the corporate level i.e Astec Industries Inc the parent company The engineering

design sales manufacturing and basic accounting functions are all handled at each individual subsidiary

Standard accounting procedures are prescribed and followed in all reporting

The non-union employees of each subsidiary have the opportunity to earn profit-sharing incentives in the

aggregate of up to 10% of each subsidiarys after-tax profit if such subsidiary meets established goals These

goals are based on the subsidiarys return on capital employed cash flow on capital employed and safety The

profit-sharing incentives for subsidiary presidents and corporate officers are normally paid from separate

formula-driven pool based on the same key performance indicators used in the employee incentive plan

Explanatory Note

The Company has restated its previously filed consolidated balance sheets as of December 31 2012 and

2011 and its consolidated income statements for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 to correct

immaterial accounting errors related to the elimination of intercompany profits on interdivisional sales within

the Companys Asphalt Group Management discovered the error during its routine month-end review of

its September 2013 internal financial statements while investigating an unexpected variance at one of its

subsidiaries The errors caused the financial results and inventory levels previously reported for 2009 through

2012 to be understated by an immaterial amount each period Although the impact of the errors was immaterial

in each period the cumulative impact of the correcting the errors when aggregated together would have

been material to the Companys consolidated income statement for the year ended December 31 2013

description of the error follows

As part of the process to consolidate each of the Companys subsidiaries financial statements each month

intercompany and interdivisional sales and cost of sales recorded on the Companys subsidiaries books

must be eliminated Additionally inventory levels must be decreased and margins deferred for the portion

of these products that have not yet been sold to non-affiliated customers Beginning in 2009 sales and

cost of sales on interdivisional transactions between the two divisions of the Companys subsidiary Astec

Inc were properly eliminated at the time of the interdivision sales however the related margins were not

subsequently recognized when the products were eventually sold to non-affiliated customers This resulted

in an understatement of margins related income taxes and inventory levels as reported in the Companys
consolidated financial statements for each period

For further details on the nature of the corrections and the related impact on the Companys previously issued

consolidated financial statements see Note Restatement of Previously issued Financial States included

in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Results of Operations 2013 vs 2012

Net Sales

Net sales decreased $3275000 or 0.3% from $936273000 in 2012 to $932998000 in 2013 Sales are

generated primarily from new equipment purchases made by customers for use in construction for privately

funded infrastructure and public sector spending on infrastructure as well as equipment for the aggregate

mining quarrying and recycle markets and the oil and gas and geothermal industries

Domestic sales for 2013 were $599054000 or 64.2% of consolidated net sales compared to $572522000

or 61.1% of consolidated net sales for 2012 an increase of $26532000 or 4.6% The overall increase in

domestic sales for 2013 compared to 2012 reflects the strengthening economic conditions for the Companys

products in the domestic market

International sales for 2013 were $333944000 or 35.8% of consolidated net sales compared to $363751000

or 38.9% of consolidated net sales for 2012 decrease of $29807000 or 8.2% International sales decreased

due to the economic uncertainties in several countries in which the Company markets its products as well as

strengthening U.S dollar against many foreign currencies The Company continues its efforts to grow its

international business by increasing its presence in the markets it serves

Parts sales as percentage of consolidated net sales increased 20 basis points to 26.5% in 2013 from 26.3%

in 2012 In dollars parts sales increased 0.4% to $246905000 in 2013 from $245851000 in 2012

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit as percentage of sales remained constant at 22.2% in 2013 and 2012

Selling General and Administrative Expense

Selling general and administrative expenses for 2013 were $133337000 or 14.3% of net sales compared

to $136323000 or 14.6% of net sales for 2012 decrease of $2986000 or 2.2% In 2013 the Company

recorded $799000 of expense related to the 2014 ConExpo Show compared to $143000 in 2012 The

decrease in selling general and administrative expense from prior year was primarily due to decrease in

legal and professional expenses of $1525000

Research and Development

Research and development expenses decreased $2419000 or 11.8% to $18101000 in 2013 from

$20520000 in 2012 During 2013 and 2012 the Company invested heavily in research and development

across all segments for numerous new equipment offerings which will be showcased at the 2014 ConExpo

Show

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2013 increased $84000 or 24.8% to $423000 from $339000 in 2012 The increase

in interest expense in 2013 compared to 2012 related primarily to the increase in bank fees related to the

Companys line of credit agreement with Wells Fargo

Interest Income

Interest income decreased $98000 or 8.6% to $1047000 in 2013 from $1145000 in 2012

Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense net was $1937000 in 2013 compared to $1783000 in 2012 an increase of

$154000 or 8.6% due to an increase in investment income on portion of the Companys excess cash

invested in mutual funds beginning in 2013

Income Tax

Income tax expense on continuing operations for 2013 was $19028000 compared to income tax expense

of $19487000 for 2012 The effective tax rates for 2013 and 2012 were 32.7% and 36.3% respectively The

primary reason for the decrease in the effective tax rate from 2012 to 2013 is tax legislation passed in early

2013 that allowed the Company to obtain tax credit in 2013 based upon amounts expensed for research and

development in 2012 in addition to research and development costs incurred in 2013

Net Income Attributable To Controlling Interest

The Company had net income attributable to controlling interest of $39042000 in 2013 compared to

$40828000 in 2012 which includes $6779000 of income from discontinued operations for decrease

of $1786000 or 4.4% Earnings per diluted share decreased $0.08 from $1.77 in 2012 to $1.69 in 2013

Weighted average diluted shares outstanding for the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 were

23081000 and 23051000 respectively The increase in shares outstanding is primarily due to the granting

of restricted stock units
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Backlog

The backlog of orders at December 31 2013 was $290242000 compared to $263791000 at December 31

2012 an increase of $26451000 or 10.0% The increase in the backlog of orders was due to an increase

in domestic backlog of $43880000 or 28.0% offset by decrease in international backlog of $17429000 or

16.3% The Aggregate and Mining Group backlog increased $16899000 or 19.2% from 2012 to 2013 due in

part to an order received in late 2013 for large crushing screening and wash plant for domestic customer

The Asphalt Group backlog increased $13891000 or 9.9% from 2012 The Underground Group backlog

increased $669000 or 4.8% from 2012 due to the increased demand for units for the oil and gas industry in

the latter part of 2013 The Mobile Asphalt Paving Group backlog increased $1826000 or 42.8% The Mobile

Asphalt Paving Group typically operates with smaller backlog than the other segments due to the nature of

its products The Company is unable to determine whether the increase in backlogs was experienced by the

industry as whole

Net Sales by Segment in thousands

2012 Change %Change

Asphalt Group 237959 234562 3397 1.4%

Aggregate and Mining Group 350514 355428 4914 1.4%
Mobile Asphalt Paving Group 168444 158115 10329 6.5%

Underground Group 73104 82802 9698 11.7%

Other Group 102977 105366 2389 2.3%

Asphalt Group Sales in this group increased to $237959000 in 2013 compared to $234562000 in 2012 an

increase of $3397000 or 1.4% Domestic sales for the Asphalt Group increased 11.4% in 2013 compared

to 2012 due to the strengthening of the U.S domestic economy International sales for the Asphalt Group

decreased 23.8% in 2013 compared to 2012 The decrease in international sales occurred primarily in

Canada Mexico Asia India and Central America Parts sales for the Asphalt Group increased 4.8% in 2013

compared to 2012

Aggregate and Mining Group Sales in this group were $350514000 in 2013 compared to $355428000 in

2012 decrease of $4914000 or .4% Domestic sales for the Aggregate and Mining Group increased 1.9%

in 2013 compared to 2012 primarily due to improving economic conditions and improved demand related

to infrastructure particularly in the oil and gas producing regions of the country International sales for the

Aggregate and Mining Group decreased 4.6% in 2013 compared to 2012 The decrease in international

sales occurred primarily in Europe Post-Soviet States South America China and Brazil Parts sales for the

Aggregate and Mining Group increased 5.5% in 2013 compared to 2012

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group Sales in this group were $168444000 in 2013 compared to $158115000 in

2012 an increase of $10329000 or 6.5% Domestic sales for the Mobile Asphalt Paving Group increased

8.8% in 2013 over 2012 The Mobile Asphalt Paving Group completed the first phase of the redesign of

equipment models affected by the federally mandated switch to Tier IV engines which resulted in an increase

in interest from domestic customers for the newly designed models in 2013 International sales for the Mobile

Asphalt Paving Group decreased 3.9% in 2013 compared to 2012 The decrease internationally occurred

primarily in Russia offset by an increase in Europe Parts sales for this group remained relatively flat in 2013

compared to 2012

Underground Group Sales in this group were $73104000 in 2013 compared to $82802000 in 2012
decrease of $9698000 or 11.7% Domestic sales for the Underground Group decreased 27.9% in 2013

compared to 2012 due to the sale of the small utility trencher and drill line of products in 2012 International

sales for the Underground Group increased 38.9% in 2013 compared to 2012 The increase in international

sales occurred in the Post-Soviet States and Africa and was primarily related to water well drilling rigs sales

Parts sales for the Underground Group decreased 31 .3% in 2013 due to the sale of the small utility trencher

and drill line of products in 2012
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Other Group Sales for the Other Group were $102977000 in 2013 compared to $105366000 in 2012

decrease of $2389000 or 2.3% Domestic sales for the Other Group which are generated by Peterson

Pacific Corp increased 28.1% in 2013 compared to 2012 The increase in sales was result of land clearing

projects for large pipeline project in the northeastern U.S as well as an improvement in the U.S grinder

and recycler market International sales for the Other Group which are generated primarily by Astec Australia

decreased 17.8% in 2013 compared to 2012 The decrease in international sales is due primarily to 2012

including abnormally high asphalt plant sales Astec Australia functions as dealer for the Companys other

subsidiaries and sells installs and services equipment for the asphalt aggregate and mining mobile asphalt

and underground construction markets of Australia Parts sales for the Other Group increased 7.7% in 2013

Segment Profit Loss in thousands

2012 Change %Change

Asphalt Group 26962 22012 4950 22.5%

Aggregate and Mining Group 33031 34687 1656 4.8%

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group 1767 10721 1046 9.8%

Underground Group 4902 2238 2664 119.0%

Other Group 27375 30453 3078 10.1%

Asphalt Group Profit for this group was $26962000 for 2013 compared to $22012000 for 2012 an increase

of $4950000 or 22.5% This group had an increase of $4962000 in gross profit compared to 2012 as result

of the $3397000 increase in sales

Aggregate and Mining Group Profit for this group was $33031000 in 2013 compared to $34687000 in 2012

decrease of $1656000 or 4.8% This group had decrease of $2705000 in gross profit during 2013 as

result of the $4914000 decrease in sales offset by $1305000 reduction in research and development

expenses

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group Profit for this group was $11767000 in 2013 compared to profit of $10721000

in 2012 an increase of $1046000 or 9.8% This group had an increase of $2092000 in gross profit during

2013 as result of the $10329000 increase in sales

Underground Group This group had loss of $2238000 in 2012 compared to loss of $4902000 in 2013 an

increase of $2664000 or 119.0% This group had decrease of $4314000 in gross profit during 2013 driven

by decrease in sales of $9698000 offset by reduction in selling general and administrative expenses of

$2108000

Other Group The Other Group had loss of $27375000 in 2013 compared to loss of $30453000 in 2012

an improvement of $3078000 or 10.1% Gross profit for this group decreased $867000 or 4.7% year over

year due in part to decreased sales of $2389000 for this group The profit in this group was also significantly

impacted by U.S federal income tax expense which is recorded at the parent company

Results of Operations 2012 vs 2011

Net Sales

Net sales increased $27632000 or 3.0% from $908641000 in 2011 to $936273000 in 2012 Sales are

generated primarily from new equipment purchases made by customers for use in construction for privately

funded infrastructure and public sector spending on infrastructure as well as equipment for the aggregate

mining quarrying and recycle markets and the oil and gas and geothermal industries The overall increase in

sales for 2012 compared to 2011 reflects the strengthening economic conditions in domestic markets

Domestic sales for 2012 were $572522000 or 61.1% of consolidated net sales compared to $543527000

or 59.8% of consolidated net sales for 2011 an increase of $28995000 or 5.3% The overall increase in

domestic sales for 2012 compared to 2011 reflects the strengthening economic conditions for the Companys

products in the domestic market

International sales for 2012 were $363751000 or 38.9% of consolidated net sales compared to $365114000

or 40.2% of consolidated net sales for 2011 decrease of $1363000 or 0.4% International sales remained

relatively flat but still strong as percentage of 2012 total sales due to strong economic conditions in the

international markets the Company serves as well as the continued efforts of the Company to grow its

international business
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Parts sales as percentage of consolidated net sales increased 210 basis points to 26.3% in 2012 from 24.2%

in 2011 In dollars parts sales increased 11.8% to $245851000 in 2012 from $219963000 in 2011

Gross Profit

Consolidated gross profit as percentage of sales decreased 110 basis points to 22.2% in 2012 from 23.3% in

2011 The decrease in gross margin is partially due to the costs associated with the redesign of certain of our

products as result of the switch to Tier engines mandated by the federal government as well as increased

production costs associated with new products recently introduced to the market and the underutilization of

plant capacity at certain of our facilities Sales price increases lagging behind raw material price increases on

the aged backlog of equipment orders and competitive pricing pressures also contributed to the decrease in

gross profit as percent of sales

Selling General and Administrative Expense

Selling general and administrative expenses for 2012 were $136323000 or 14.6% of net sales compared

to $132371000 or 14.6% of net sales for 2011 an increase of $3952000 or 3.0% The increase was

primarily due to an increase in payroll and related expenses of $6638000 an increase in travel expenses of

$1501000 and an increase in health insurance of $4125000 These expenses were offset by decrease

in expenses of $3159000 related to the triennial Con-Expo Show which took place in 2011 profit sharing

expense of $1 91 1000 the write down of aviation assets held for sale of $2304000 2011 only and stock

based compensation expense of $1548000

Research and Development

Research and development expenses decreased $244000 or 1.2% to $20520000 in 2012 from $20764000
in 2011 During 2012 and 2011 the Company invested heavily in research and development across all

segments for numerous new equipment offerings including the continued development of wood pellet

processing plant

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2012 increased $149000 or 78.4% to $339000 from $190000 in 2011 The increase

in interest expense in 2012 compared to 2011 related primarily to the increase in bank fees related to the

Companys new line of credit agreement with Wells Fargo

Interest Income

Interest income increased $262000 or 29.7% to $1145000 in 2012 from $883000 in 2011 The increase in

interest income resulted from an increase in amounts invested in 2012 compared to 2011 and interest earned

on notes receivable from customers

Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense net was $1783000 in 2012 compared to $1082000 in 2011 an increase of

$701 000 or 64.8% due to increased licensing fee income

Income Tax

Income tax expense on continuing operations for 2012 was $19487000 compared to income tax expense

of $19733000 for 2011 The effective tax rates for 2012 and 2011 were 36.3% and 32.8% respectively

The primary reason for the increase in the effective tax rate from 2011 to 2012 was the unavailability of the

research and development tax credit for 2012 Tax legislation passed in early 2013 allowed the Company to

obtain tax credit in 2013 based upon amounts expensed for research and development in 2012 in addition

to research and development costs expensed in 2013

Net Income Attributable To Controlling Interest

The Company had net income attributable to controlling interest of $40828000 in 2012 which includes

$6779000 income from discontinued operations compared to $40563000 in 2011 for an increase of

$265000 or 0.7% Earnings per diluted share increased slightly to $1 .77 in 2012 from $1 .76 in 2011 Weighted

average diluted shares outstanding for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were 23051000 and

22984000 respectively The increase in shares outstanding is primarily due to the vesting of restricted stock

units and the exercise of stock options by employees of the Company

Backlog

The backlog of orders at December 31 2012 was $263791000 compared to $268618000 adjusted for

discontinued operations at December 31 2011 decrease of $4827000 or 1.8% The decrease in the

backlog of orders was due to an increase in domestic backlog of $11578000 or 8.0% offset by decrease in

international backlog of $16405000 or 13.3% The Asphalt Group backlog increased $24053000 or 20.8%

from 2011 The Asphalt Group increase was to related domestic orders and was primarily due to an order for

wood pellet processing plant The Aggregate and Mining Group backlog decreased $10139000 or 10.3%
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The decrease in backlog for the Aggregate and Mining Group occurred in both domestic and international

orders The Underground Group backlog decreased $7438000 or 34.8% from 2011 due to the decreased

demand for units for the oil and gas industry in the latter part of 2012 The Mobile Asphalt Paving Group

backlog decreased $1884000 or 30.6% The Mobile Asphalt Paving Group typically operates with smaller

backlog than the other segments due to the nature of their products The Company is unable to determine

whether the decrease in backlogs was experienced by the industry as whole

Net Sales by Segment in thousands

2011 Change %Change

Asphalt Group 234562 260404 25842 9.9%

Aggregate and Mining Group 355428 333278 22150 6.6%

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group 158115 187988 29873 15.9%

Underground Group 82802 37683 45119 119.7%

Other Group 105366 89288 16078 18.0%

Asphalt Group Sales in this group decreased to $234562000 in 2012 compared to $260404000 in 2011

decrease of $25842000 or 9.9% Domestic sales for the Asphalt Group decreased 8.9% in 2012 compared

to 2011 due primarily to delayed approval of federal long-term highway funding bill which impacted

orders that typically require long production lead time in addition to state budgetary concerns The federal

highway funding was passed in July 2012 but was well after most states let their jobs for construction in

2012 International sales for the Asphalt Group decreased 12.4% in 2012 compared to 2011 The decrease in

international sales occurred primarily in Europe the Middle East Post-Soviet States and South America Parts

sales for the Asphalt Group remained flat in 2012 compared to 2011

Aggregate and Mining Group Sales in this group were $355428000 in 2012 compared to $333278000 in

2011 an increase of $22150000 or 6.6% Domestic sales for the Aggregate and Mining Group increased

16.2% in 2012 compared to 2011 primarily due to improving economic conditions and improved demand

related to infrastructure particularly in the oil and gas producing regions of the country International sales for

the Aggregate and Mining Group decreased 1.3% in 2012 compared to 2011 The decrease in international

sales occurred primarily in South America Africa and the Middle East Parts sales for the Aggregate and

Mining Group increased 7.6% in 2012 compared to 2011

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group Sales in this group were $158115000 in 2012 compared to $187988000 in

2011 decrease of $29873000 or 15.9% Domestic sales for the Mobile Asphalt Paving Group decreased

15.3% in 2012 over 2011 Domestic sales of equipment for this Group were negatively affected by the

federal government mandated switch to Tier IV engines as well as increased competition from international

manufacturers that had longer transition time to implement the Tier IV ergines on their imports to the U.S

market The decrease in domestic sales for the Mobile Asphalt Paving Group is also due in part to the increase

of available rental units in the market International sales for the Mobile Asphalt Paving Group decreased

18.7% in 2012 compared to 2011 The decrease internationally occurred primarily in Canada South America

and Mexico Parts sales for this group increased 4.5% in 2012

Underground Group Sales in this group were $82802000 in 2012 compared to $37683000 in 2011 an

increase of $45119000 or 119.7% Domestic sales for the Underground Group increased 177.4% in 2012

compared to 2011 International sales for the Underground Group increased 33.1% in 2012 compared to

2011 The increase in international sales occurred in Asia South America and Australia Parts sales for the

Underground Group increased 148.5% in 2012 i3EFCO which was acquired by the Company in the fourth

quarter of 2011 accounted for $34643000 of the increase in the Underground Groups sales and positively

impacted both domestic and international sales including parts sales of this Group

Other Group Sales for the Other Group were $105366000 in 2012 compared to $89288000 in 2011 an

increase of $16078000 or 18.0% Domestic sales for the Other Group which are generated by Peterson

Pacific Corp increased 13.3% in 2012 compared to 2011 International sales for the Other Group which are

generated primarily by Astec Australia increased 20.6% in 2012 compared to 2011 Astec Australia functions

as dealer for the Companys other subsidiaries and has increased its focus to sell install and service

equipment for the asphalt aggregate and mining mobile asphalt and underground construction markets of

Australia Parts sales for the Other Group increased 4.2% in 2012
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Segment Profit Loss in thousands

2012 2011 $Change %Change

Asphalt Group 22012 30275 8263 27.3%

Aggregate and Mining Group 34687 31493 3194 10.1%

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group 10721 26485 15764 59.5%

Underground Group 2238 7318 5080 69.4%

Other Group 30453 38549 8096 21 .0%

Asphalt Group Profit for this group was $22012000 for 2012 compared to $30275000 for 2011 decrease

of $8263000 or 27.3% This group had decrease of $7712000 in gross profit compared to 2011 as result

of the $25842000 decrease in sales

Aggregate and Mining Group Profit for this group was $34687000 in 2012 compared to $31 493000 in 2011
an increase of $3194000 or 10.1% This group had an increase of $7165000 in

gross profit during 2012 as

result of the $22150000 increase in sales This gross profit increase was offset by increases of $3761000

in selling general and administrative expenses including payroll related expenses travel expense sales

commission expense and research and development expenses

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group Profit for this group was $10721000 in 2012 compared to profit of $26485000
in 2011 decrease of $15764000 or 59.5% This group had decrease of $15235000 in gross profit during

2012 as result of the $29873000 decrease in sales and also due to the costs associated with the redesign

of certain products as result of the switch to Tier engines mandated by the federal government This group

had an increase in selling general and administrative expenses of $747000 which was primarily attributed to

payroll related expense travel expense sales commission expense and research and development expenses

Underground Group This group had loss of $2238000 in 2012 compared to loss of $7318000 in 2011

for an improvement of $5080000 or 69.4% This group had an increase of $9386000 in gross profit during

2012 driven by the $45119000 increase in sales Selling general and administrative expenses increased

$4391000 due primarily to increases in payroll related expenses bad debt expense exhibit expense and

research and development expenses These results included GEFCO Inc results for the entire year of 2012

compared to three months of 2011

Other Group The Other Group had loss of $30453000 in 2012 compared to loss of $38549000 in

2011 an improvement of $8096000 or 21.0% Gross profit for this group increased $2814000 or 18.1%

year over year due in part to $16078000 in increased sales for this group The results for this group were

positively impacted by the decrease in selling general and administrative expense of $3500000 that resulted

from decreases in profit sharing and stock based compensation expenses In addition the write down of

aviation assets held for sale of $2304000 only occurred in 2011 The profit in this group was also significantly

impacted by U.S federal income tax expense which is recorded at the parent company Income tax expense

in this group increased $1691000 in 2012 compared to 2011

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Companys primary sources of liquidity and capital resources are its cash on hand investments borrowing

capacity under $100000000 revolving credit facility and cash flows from operations The Company had

$35564000 of which $12442000 was held by our foreign subsidiaries of cash and $16073000 of short

term investments available for operating purposes at December 31 2013 In addition the Company had

no borrowings outstanding under its credit
facility

with Wells Fargo Bank N.A Wells Fargo at any time

during the year ended December 31 2013 The Company had outstanding letters of credit of $6943000 and

borrowing availability of $93057000 under the credit facility as of December 31 2013

52 Astec Industries Inc



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

On April 12 2012 the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into an amended and restated credit

agreement with Wells Fargo whereby Wells Fargo extended to the Company an unsecured line of credit of

up to $100000000 including sub-limit for letters of credit of up to $25000000 The amended and restated

credit agreement replaced the expiring $100000000 credit facility
between the Company and Wells Fargo

The amended and restated agreement has five-year term expiring in April 2017 Borrowings under the

agreement are subject to an interest rate equal to the daily one-month LIBOR rate plus 0.75% margin The

unused facility fee is 0.175% Interest only payments are due monthly The amended and restated credit

agreement contains certain financial covenants including provisions concerning required levels of annual

net income minimum tangible net worth and maximum allowed capital expenditures The Company was in

compliance with these covenants as of December 31 2013

The Companys South African subsidiary Osborn Engineered Products SA Pty Ltd Osborn has credit

facility of $7146000 ZAR 75000000 to finance short-term working capital needs as well as to cover

performance letters of credit advance payment and retention guarantees As of December 31 2013 Osborn

had no cash borrowings under the credit facility and $648000 in performance advance payment and retention

guarantees under the facility The facility is unsecured As of December31 2013 Osborn had available credit

under the facility of $6498000 The interest rate is 0.25% below the South Africa prime rate resulting in

rate of 8.25% at December 31 2013

Cash Flows from Operating Activities in thousands

Increase

Decrease

39214 1775

22265 23048 783

12199 11152 1047

1350 146 1204
-- 5358 5358

1461 1285 176

2220 6223 8443
1075 511 564

8849 7555 16404

36561 41145 4584

5433 1655 3778
1028 6425 7453

5436 4918 10354

10163 11021 858

1085 298 787

2454 1596 858

2012

40989Net income

Adjustments

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for warranty

Sale purchase of trading securities net

Gain on sale of subsidiary

Stock based compensation

Deferred income tax provision benefits

Other net

Changes in working capital

Increase decrease in receivables

Increase decrease in inventories

Increase decrease in prepaid expenses

Increase decrease in accounts payable

Increase decrease in customer deposits

Increase decrease in accrued product warranties

Increase decrease in other accrued liabilities

Other net

Net cash provided by operating activities 5861 28633 22772

Net cash provided by operating activities decreased $22772000 in 2013 compared to 2012 The primary

reasons for the decrease in operating cash flows relate to receivables and customer deposits

Cash Flows from Investing Activities in thousands

Increase

2012 Decrease

Expenditures for property and equipment 27673 26018 1655
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary

-- 42940 42940

Purchase of short-term investments 15000 -- 15000

Other 424 375 49

Net cash provided used by investing activities 42249 17297 59546

Astec Industries Inc 53



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Investing activities used cash of $42249000 in 2013 compared to cash provided of $17297000 in 2012

The change is primarily due to $15000000 purchase of short-term investments in 2013 and non-recurring

proceed from the sale of subsidiary of 2012

Cash Flows from Financing Activities in thousands

2013

Net cash used by financing activities 6586 22472 15886

Financing activities used cash of $6586000 in 2013 and $22472000 in 2012 for net change of $15886000
due primarily to the payment of the Companys initial $1.00 per common share dividend in December 2012

compared to $10 per share quarterly dividends beginning in the second quarter of 2013

Capital expenditures for 2014 are forecasted to total $39244000 The Company expects to finance these

expenditures using currently available cash balances short-term investments internally generated funds and

available credit under the Companys credit facility as well as local financing for the equipment in the new

Brazilian manufacturing facility Capital expenditures are generally for machinery equipment and facilities

used by the Company in the production of its various products

The Company sold American Augers Inc on November 30 2012 Cash flows from the operations of American

Augers are reflected in the statements of cash flows through the date of sale Cash flows from the operations

of American Augers were not material during the periods presented and the absence of cash flows related to

American Augers is not expected to impact the Companys future liquidity or capital resources See Note 22
Discontinued Operations for additional information regarding the sale of American Augers

Financial Condition

The Companys current assets increased to $522411000 at December 31 2013 from $504084000 at

December 31 2012 an increase of $18327000 The increase is primarily due to an increase of $29630000
in inventory

The Companys current liabilities decreased to $133531000 at December 31 2013 from $145548000
at December 31 2012 decrease of $12017000 The decrease is primarily attributable to decreases in

customer deposits of $6726000 and other accrued liabilities of $7095000

Market Risk and Risk Management Policies

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates primarily from its revolving credit agreements

hypothetical 100 basis point adverse move increase in interest rates would not have materially affected

interest expense for the year ended December 31 2013 since there were no amounts outstanding on the

revolving credit agreements during the year The Company does not hedge variable interest

The Company is subject to foreign exchange risk at its foreign operations Foreign operations represent

14.9% and 16.3% of total assets at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively and 14.0% and 14.4% of total

revenue for the years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively Each period the balance sheets

and related results of operations of the Companys foreign subsidiaries are translated from their functional

foreign currency into U.S dollars for reporting purposes As the dollar strengthens against those foreign

currencies the foreign denominated net assets and operating results become less valuable in the Companys
reporting currency When the dollar weakens against those currencies the foreign denominated net assets

and operating results become more valuable in the Companys reporting currency At each reporting date

the fluctuation in the value of the net assets and operating results due to foreign exchange rate changes is

recorded as an adjustment to other comprehensive income in equity The Company views its investments in

foreign subsidiaries as long-term and does not hedge the net investments in foreign subsidiaries

Payment of dividends 6856 22790
Other net 270 318

Increase

2012 Decrease

15934

48
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From time to time the Companys foreign subsidiaries enter into transactions not denominated in their functional

currency In these situations the Company evaluates the need to hedge those transactions against foreign

currency rate fluctuations When the Company determines need to hedge transaction the subsidiary

enters into foreign currency exchange contract The Company does not apply hedge accounting to these

contracts and therefore recognizes the fair value of these contracts in the consolidated balance sheets and

the change in the fair value of the contracts in current earnings

Due to the limited exposure to foreign exchange rate risk 10% fluctuation in the foreign exchange rates

at December 31 2013 or 2012 would not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial

statements

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations and the period in which payments are due as of December 31 2013 are as follows in

thousands

Payments Due by Period

Less Than More Than

Contractual Obligations Total Year to Years to Years Years

Operatingleaseobligations 2442 1272 945 188 37

Inventory purchase obligations 1652 1652 -- -- --

Total 4094 2924 945 188 37

The above table excludes our liability for unrecognized tax benefits which totaled $1933000 at December

31 2013 since we cannot predict with reasonable reliability the timing of cash settlements to the respective

taxing authorities

In 2013 the Company made contributions of approximately $81 1000 to its pension plan compared to

$755000 in 2012 The Company estimates that it will contribute $353000 to the pension plan during 2014

The Companys funding policy is to make the minimum annual contributions required by applicable regulations

Contingencies

Management has reviewed all claims and lawsuits and has made adequate provision for any losses that

can be reasonably estimated Based upon currently available information and with the advice of counsel

management believes that the ultimate outcome of its current claims and legal proceedings individually and

in the aggregate will not have material adverse effect on the Companys financial position cash flows or

results of operations However claims and legal proceedings are subject to inherent uncertainties and rulings

unfavorable to the Company could occur If an unfavorable ruling were to occur there exists the possibility of

material adverse effect on the Companys financial position cash flows or results of operations

Certain customers have financed purchases of the Companys products through arrangements in which the

Company is contingently liable for customer debt aggregating $693000 and $2091000 at December 31

2013 and 2012 respectively These obligations have average remaining terms of 1.4 years The Company

has recorded liability
of $121000 related to these guarantees at December 31 2013

The Company is contingently liable under letters of credit of approximately $8442000 primarily for

performance guarantees to customers banks or insurance carriers

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2013 the Company does not have off-balance sheet arrangements as defined by Item

303a4 of Regulation S-K

Astec Industries Inc 55



MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

Environmental Matters

During 2004 the Company received notice from the Environmental Protection Agency that it may be

responsible for portion of the costs incurred in connection with an environmental cleanup in Illinois The

discharge of hazardous materials and associated cleanup relate to activities occurring prior to the Companys
acquisition of Barber-Greene in 1986 The Company believes that over 300 other parties have received similar

notice At this time the Company cannot predict whether the EPA will seek to hold the Company liable for

portion of the cleanup costs or the amount of any such liability The Company has not recorded liability with

respect to this matter because no estimate of the amount of any such
liability

can be made at this time

Critical Accounting Policies

The Companys consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States Application of these principles requires the Company to make

estimates and judgments that affect the amounts as reported in the consolidated financial statements

Accounting policies that are critical to aid in understanding and evaluating the results of operations and

financial position of the Company include the following

inventory Valuation Inventories are valued at the lower of first-in first-out cost or market The most significant

component of the Companys inventories is steel Open market prices which are subject to volatility determine

the cost of steel for the Company During periods when open market prices decline the Company may need to

reduce the carrying value of the inventory In addition certain items in inventory become obsolete over time

and the Company reduces the carrying value of these items to their net realizable value These reductions

are determined by the Company based on estimates assumptions and judgments made from the information

available at that time The Company does not believe it is reasonably likely that the inventory values will

materially change in the near future

Self-Insurance Reserves The Company insures the retention portion of workers compensation claims and

general liability claims by way of captive insurance company Astec Insurance Company The objectives

of Astec Insurance are to improve control over and reduce retained loss costs to improve focus on risk

reduction with development of program structure which rewards proactive loss control and to ensure active

management participation in the defense and settlement process for claims

For general liability claims the captive is liable for the first $1 000000 per occurrence and $3000000 per

year in the aggregate The Company carries general liability excess liability and umbrella policies for claims

in excess of those covered by the captive

For workers compensation claims the captive is liable for the first $350000 per occurrence and $2750000 per

year in the aggregate The Company utilizes large national insurance company as third-party administrator

for workers compensation claims and carries insurance coverage for claims liabilities in excess of amounts

covered by the captive

The financial statements of the captive are consolidated into the financial statements of the Company The

short-term and long-term reserves for claims and probable claims related to general liability and workers

compensation under the captive are included in accrued loss reserves and other long-term liabilities

respectively in the consolidated balance sheets depending on the expected timing of future payments The

undiscounted reserves are actuarially determined based on the Companys evaluation of the type and severity

of individual claims and historical information primarily its own claims experience along with assumptions

about future events Changes in assumptions as well as changes in actual experience could cause these

estimates to change in the future However the Company does not believe it is reasonably likely that the

reserve level will materially change in the near future

At all but one of the Companys domestic manufacturing subsidiaries the Company is self-insured for health

and prescription claims under its Group Health Insurance Plan The Company carries reinsurance coverage

to limit its exposure for individual health claims above certain limits Third parties administer health claims and

prescription medication claims The Company maintains reserve for the self-insured health plan which is

included in accrued loss reserves on the Companys consolidated balance sheets This reserve includes both

unpaid claims and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported based on historical claims and payment

experience Historically the reserves have been sufficient to provide for claims payments Changes in actual

claims experience or payment patterns could cause the reserve to change but the Company does not

believe it is reasonably likely that the reserve level will materially change in the near future
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The remaining U.S subsidiary is covered under fully insured group
health plan Employees of the Companys

foreign subsidiaries are insured under health plans in accordance with their local governmental requirements

No reserves are necessary for these fully insured health plans

Product Warranty Reserve The Company accrues for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time

revenue is recognized Warranty obligations by product line or model are evaluated based on historical

warranty claims experience For machines the Companys standard product warranty terms generally include

post-sales support and repairs of products at no additional charge for periods ranging from three months to

two years or up to specified number of hours of operation For parts from component suppliers the Company

relies on the original manufacturers warranty that accompanies those parts Generally fabricated parts are

not covered by specific warranty terms Although failure of fabricated parts due to material or workmanship is

rare if it occurs the Companys policy is to replace fabricated parts at no additional charge

The Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes including actively monitoring

and evaluating the quality of component suppliers Estimated warranty obligations are based upon warranty

terms product failure rates repair costs and current period machine shipments If actual product failure rates

repair costs service delivery costs or post-sales support costs differ from estimates revisions to the estimated

warranty liability would be required The Company does not believe it is reasonably likely that the warranty

reserve will materially change in the near future

Revenue Recognition Revenue is generally recognized on sales at the point in time when persuasive evidence

of an arrangement exists the price is fixed or determinable the product has been delivered or services have

been rendered and there is reasonable assurance of collection of the sales proceeds The Company generally

obtains purchase authorizations from its customers for specified amount of product at specified price

with specified delivery terms significant portion of the Companys equipment sales represents equipment

produced in the Companys plants under short-term contracts for specific customer project or equipment

designed to meet customers specific requirements Most of the equipment sold by the Company is based on

standard configurations some of which are modified to meet customer needs or specifications The Company

provides customers with technical design and performance specifications and performs pre-shipment testing

to ensure the equipment performs according to design specifications regardless of whether the Company

provides installation services in addition to selling the equipment

Certain contracts include terms and conditions through which the Company recognizes revenues upon

completion of equipment production which is subsequently stored at the Companys plant at the customers

request Revenue is recorded on such contracts upon the customers assumption of title and risk of ownership

and when collectability is reasonably assured In addition there must be fixed schedule of delivery of the

goods consistent with the customers business practices the Company must not have retained any specific

performance obligations such that the earnings process is not complete and the goods must have been

segregated from the Companys inventory prior to revenue recognition

The Company has certain sales accounted for as multiple-element arrangements whereby revenue attributable

to the sale of product is recognized when it is shipped and the revenue attributable to services provided

with respect to the product such as installation services is recognized when the service is performed

Consideration is determined using the fair value method and approximates the sales price of the product

shipped or services performed The Company evaluates sales with multiple deliverable elements such as

an agreement to deliver equipment and related installation services to determine whether revenue related

to individual elements should be recognized separately or as combined unit In addition to the previously

mentioned general revenue recognition criteria the Company only recognizes revenue on individual delivered

elements when there is objective and reliable evidence that the delivered element has determinable value

to the customer on standalone basis and there is no right of return

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Intangible assets are classified into two categories intangible assets

with definite lives subject to amortization and goodwill Intangible assets with definite lives are tested for

impairment if conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable Risk factors that may be

considered include an economic downturn in the general economy geographic market or the commercial

and residential construction industries change in the assessment of future operations as well as the cyclical

nature of our industry and the customization of the equipment we sell each of which may cause adverse

fluctuations in operating results Other risk factors considered would be an increase in the price or decrease

in the availability of oil that could reduce the demand for our products in addition to the significant fluctuations
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MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS CONTINUED

in the purchase price of raw materials that could have negative impact on the cost of production and gross

margins as well as others more fully described in the Risk Factors section of our Form 10-K An impairment

charge is recorded when the carrying value of the definite lived intangible asset is not recoverable by the

cash flows generated from the use of the asset Some of the inputs used in the impairment testing are highly

subjective and are affected by changes in business factors and other conditions Changes in any of the inputs

could have an effect on future tests and result in impairment charges

Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances

indicate that such intangible assets or goodwill might be impaired See Note Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies for detailed description of testing performed by the Company to determine if the

recorded value of intangible assets or goodwill has been impaired

The useful lives of identifiable intangible assets are determined after considering the specific facts and

circumstances related to each intangible asset Factors considered when determining useful lives include

the contractual term of any agreement the history of the asset the Companys long-term strategy for the

use of the asset any laws or other local regulations which could impact the useful life of the asset and other

economic factors including competition and specific market conditions Intangible assets that are deemed to

have definite lives are amortized generally on straight-line basis over their useful lives ranging from to

15 years

Stock-based Compensation Beginning in 2006 and again in 2011 the Company implemented five-year plans

to award key members of management restricted stock units RSU5 each year based upon annual financial

performance of the Company and its subsidiaries Each five-year plan allows up to 700000 of newly issued

shares of Company stock to be granted to employees The number of RSUs granted each year is determined

based upon the performance of individual subsidiaries and consolidated annual financial performance with

additional RSUs available for cumulative five-year results Generally each award vests at the end of five

years from the date of grant or at the time recipient retires after reaching age 65 if earlier These plans are

more fully described in Note 17 Shareholders Equity to the consolidated financial statements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There are no recently promulgated accounting pronouncements either recently adopted or yet to be adopted

that are likely to have material impact on the Companys financial reporting in the foreseeable future
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Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements made pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 Statements contained anywhere in this Annual Report that

are not limited to historical information are considered forward-looking statements within the meaning of

Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 including without limitation statements regarding

execution of the Companys growth and operation strategy

plans for technological innovation

compliance with covenants in our credit facility

liquidity and capital expenditures

sufficiency of working capital cash flows and available capacity under the Companys credit facilities

compliance with government regulations

compliance with manufacturing and delivery timetables

forecasting of results

general economic trends and political uncertainty

government funding and growth of highway construction and commercial projects

taxes or usage fees

interest rates

integration of acquisitions

industry trends

pricing demand and availability of steel oil and liquid asphalt

development of domestic oil and natural gas production

condition of the economy

strength of the dollar relative to foreign currencies

the success of new product lines

presence in the international marketplace

suitability of our current facilities

future payment of dividends

competition in our business segments

product liability and other claims

protection of proprietary technology

demand for products

future fillings
of backlogs

employees

the seasonality of our business

tax assets and reserves for uncertain tax positions

critical accounting policies and the impact of accounting changes

anticipated start-up dates for our Brazilian operations

our backlog

ability to satisfy contingencies

contributions to retirement plans and plan expenses

reserve levels for self-insured insurance plans and product warranties

construction of new manufacturing facilities

supply of raw materials

inventory and

changes in the composition of the Companys reportable segments

These forward-looking statements are based largely on managements expectations which are subject to

number of known and unknown risks uncertainties and other factors discussed in this report and in documents

filed by the Company with the Securities and Exchange Commission which may cause actual results financial

or otherwise to be materially different from those anticipated expressed or implied by the forward-looking

statements All forward-looking statements included in this document are based on information available to

the Company on the date hereof and the Company assumes no obligation to update any such forward-looking

statements to reflect future events or circumstances You can identify these statements by forward-looking

words such as expect believe anticipate goal plan intend estimate may will should and

similar expressions
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In addition to the risks and uncertainties identified elsewhere herein and in documents filed by the Company
with the Securities and Exchange Commission the following factors should be carefully considered when

evaluating the Companys business and future prospects changes or delays in highway funding rising interest

rates changes in oil prices changes in steel prices changes in the general economy unexpected capital

expenditures and decreases in liquidity the timing of large contracts production capacity general business

conditions in the industry non-compliance with covenants in the Companys credit facilities demand for the

Companys products and those other factors listed from time to time in the Companys reports filed with the

Securities and Exchange Commission Certain of the risks uncertainties and other factors discussed or noted

above are more fully described in the section entitled Risk Factors in the Companys Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2013
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ASTEC INDUSTRIES INC
MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Astec Industries Inc the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining

adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company The Companys internal control over

financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles The Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those

policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately

and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of assets of the Company ii provide reasonable assurance

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company and iii provide

reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition

of the Companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies and procedures may deteriorate

Management under the supervision and with the participation of the Companys principal executive officer

and principal financial officer has evaluated the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2013 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal Control Integrated

Framework 1992 Based on its assessment management concluded that as of December 31 2013 the

Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective

Ernst Young LLP the Companys independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation

report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

Astec Industries Inc

We have audited Astec Industries Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013

based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission 1992 framework the COSO criteria Astec Industries Inc.s

management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its

assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on the companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control

based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in

reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures

of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial

statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion Astec Industries Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2013 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Astec Industries Inc as of December 31

2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2013 of Astec Industries Inc and our

report dated March 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Chattanooga Tennessee

March 2014
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders

Astec Industries Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Astec Industries Inc as of December 31
2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income equity and cash

flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31 2013 These financial statements are the

responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on

test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well

as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of Astec Industries Inc at December 31 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated results of its

operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December31 2013 in conformity

with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Astec Industries Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission 1992 framework and our report dated March 2014 expressed

an unqualified opinion thereon

Chattanooga Tennessee

March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

in thousands

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Trade receivables

Notes and other receivables

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Deferred income tax assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment net

Investments

Goodwill

Notes receivable

Other long-term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Customer deposits

Accrued product warranty

Accrued payroll and related liabilities

Accrued loss reserves

Other accrued liabilities

Total current liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Equity

Preferred stock authorized 4000 shares of $1.00 par

value none issued

Common stock authorized 40000 shares of $20 par

value issued and outstanding -22859 in 2013 and

22799 in 2012

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Company shares held by SERP at cost

Retained earnings

Shareholders equity

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31

2013 2012

35564 80929

17176 1334

92055 85595

2734 3453

342313 312683

13636 8520

14924 10215

4009 1355

522411 504084

184520 182839

12085 10232

15057 15011

6284 6437

8934 10180

749291 728783

45845 46210

37498 44224

12716 11052

16988 16590

3328 3221

17156 24251

133531 145548

17455 15171

17794 17330

168780 178049

4572 4560

134730 133809

4894 502

2786 2855
445254 413074

576876 549090

3635 1644

580511 550734

749291 728783
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

in thousands except per share data

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling general and administrative expenses

Research and development expenses

Income from operations

Other income

Interest expense

Interest income

Other income expense net

Income from continuing operations before income taxes

Income taxes on continuing operations
___________

Net income from continuing operations __________
Discontinued operations

Income from discontinued operations net of tax

Gain on sale of subsidiary net of tax

Income from discontinued operations __________

Net income

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

Net income attributable to controlling interest
_______________

Earnings per Common Share

Net income attributable to controlling interest from

continuing operations

Basic

Diluted

Income from discontinued operations

Basic

Diluted

Net income attributable to controlling interest

Basic

Diluted

Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding

Basic

Diluted
______________

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31

ZK 2012 2011

932998 936273 908641

725879 728322 697108

207119 207951 211533

133337 136323 132371

18101 20520 20764

55681 51108 58398

423 339 190

1047 1145 883

1937 1783 1082

58242 53697 60173

19028 19487 19733

39214 34210 40440

-- 3401 225

-- 3378 --

-- 6779 225

39214 40989 40665
172 161 102

39042 40828 40563

1.72 1.50 1.79

1.69 1.48 1.76

-- 0.30 0.01

-- 0.29 0.01

1.72 1.80 1.80

1.69 1.77 1.76

22749 22680 22589

23081 23051 22984
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

in thousands

Net income

Other comprehensive income loss

Change in unrecognized pension and post-

retirement benefit costs

Tax expense benefit on change in unrecognized

pension and post-retirement benefit costs

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Tax expense on foreign currency translation

adjustments

Other comprehensive income loss

Comprehensive income loss attributable to

non-controlling interest

Comprehensive income attributable to controlling

interest

Year Ended December 31

ZsK 2012 2011

39214 40989 40665

2742 157 2687

974 10 976

8821 626 5723

1657 454 229

5396 339 7205

236 15 93

34054 40665 33367

See Notes to Unaudited Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
in thousands

40989

5358 --

20966 20945 18551

1299 2103 708

629 759 1510

12199 11152 13029

601 115 45
2220 6223 1982

-- -- 2724

163 256 54
107 310

1461 1285 2800

1350 146 1733

8849 7555 24554

36561 41145 33058
5433 1655 177

3215 1566 45

1028 6425 9002

5436 4918 6235

10163 11021 10524

823 1611 816

324 218 446
199 1435 342

1085 298 4983

1709 12 40

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

39214 40665

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Gain on sale of subsidiary

Depreciation

Amortization

Provision for doubtful accounts

Provision for warranty

Deferred compensation provision benefit

Deferred income tax provision benefit

Asset impairment charges

Gain on disposition of fixed assets

Tax expense benefit from stock incentive exercises

Stock-based compensation

Sale purchase of trading securities net

Increase decrease in

Trade and other receivables

Inventories

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Increase decrease in

Accounts payable

Customer deposits

Accrued product warranty

Income taxes payable

Accrued retirement benefit costs

Accrued loss reserves

Other accrued liabilities

Other

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Business acquisitions

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

Expenditures for property and equipment

Purchase of short-term investments

Sale of intangible assets acquired

Net cash provided used by investing activities

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

5861 28633 32307

-- -- 33407
-- 42940 --

424 375 260

27673 26018 36130

15000 -- --

-. -- 500

42249 17297 68777
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS CONTINUED

in thousands

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Payment of dividends

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Tax expense benefit from stock option exercise

Cash from sale of shares of subsidiaries

Sale purchase of company shares by

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan net

Withholding tax paid upon vesting of restricted

stock units

Net cash provided used by financing activities

Effect of exchange rates on cash

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the year for

Interest

Income taxes net of refunds

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Year Ended December 31

siK 2012 2011

6856 22790 --

112 514 812

107 310

735 904 29

213 373 266

782 834 --

6586 22472 885

2391 34 1507
45365 23424 37092

80929 5Z505 94597

35564 80929 57505

229 366 193

20331 13722 21473
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 in thousands

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Common Stock

Shares Amount

Accumulated

Additional Other Company Non-

Paid-in Comprehensive Shares Held Retained Controlling Total

Capital Income Loss by SERP Earnings Interest Equity

Balance December 31 2010 As previously

reported 22647 4529 128831 8046 2217 353019 598 492806

Restatement See Note 1470 1470

Restated Balance December 31 2010 22647 4529 128831 8046 2217 354489 598 494276

Net income 40563 102 40665

Other comprehensive loss 7205 93 7298

Change in ownership percentage of subsidiary

Stock-based compensation 2799 2800

Exercise of stock options including tax benefit 59 12 1110 1122

Purchase of Company stock held by SERP net 270 266

Balance December 31 2011 22711 4542 132744 841 2487 395052 606 531298

Net income 40828 161 409139

Dividends $1.00 per share 16 22806 22790
Other comprehensive loss 339 15 324

Change in ownership percentage of subsidiary 862 862

Stock-based compensation 1284 12135

Exercise of stock options and RSU vesting

including tax benefit 82 17 604 621

Withholding tax on vested RSU5 834 834
Purchase of Company stock held by SERP net 368 373

Balance December 31 2012 22799 4560 133809 502 2855 413074 1644 550734

Net income 39042 172 39214

Quarterly dividends $10 per share for

quarters 6862 6856

Other comprehensive loss 5396 236 5160

Change in ownership percentage of subsidiary 802 802

Capital contributed by minority shareholder 2385 2385

Stock-based compensation 1460 1461

Exercise of stock options and RSU vesting

including tax benefit 54 11 93 114

Withholding tax on vested RSU5 782 782
Sale of Company stock held by SERP net 144 69 213

Balance December31 2013 22859 4572 134730 4894 2786 $445254 3635 580511
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Astec Industries

Inc and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries The Companys significant wholly-owned and consolidated

subsidiaries at December31 2013 are as follows

Astec Australia Pty Ltd Astec do Brasil Fabricacao de Equipamentos LTDA

Astec Inc Astec Insurance Company

Astec Mobile Machinery GmbH Astec Mobile Screens Inc

Astec Underground Inc Breaker Technology Inc

Breaker Technology Ltd Carison Paving Products Inc

CEI Enterprises Inc GEFCO Inc

Heatec Inc Johnson Crushers International Inc

Kolberg-Pioneer Inc Osborn Engineered Products SA Pty Ltd 93% owned

Peterson Pacific Corp Roadtec Inc

Telsmith Inc

On November 30 2012 the Company sold its former American Augers Inc subsidiary to The Charles Machine

Works Inc American Augers results of operations have been reclassified as discontinued operations in 2012

and 2011

All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts reported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying notes Actual results could

differ from those estimates

Foreign Currency Translation Subsidiaries located in Australia Brazil Canada Germany and South Africa

operate primarily using local functional currencies Accordingly assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries are

translated using exchange rates in effect at the end of the period and revenues and costs are translated using

average exchange rates for the period The resulting adjustments are presented as separate component of

accumulated other comprehensive income Foreign currency transaction gains and losses net are included

in cost of sales and amounted to loss of $522000 in 2013 and gains of $867000 and $490000 in 2012 and

2011 respectively

Fair Value of Financial Instruments For cash and cash equivalents trade receivables other receivables

revolving debt and accounts payable the carrying amount approximates the fair value because of the short-

term nature of those instruments Trading equity investments are valued at their estimated fair value based on

their quoted market prices and debt securities are valued based upon mix of observable market prices and

model driven prices derived from matrix of observable market prices for assets with similar characteristics

obtained from nationally recognized third party pricing service

Financial assets and liabilities are categorized as of the end of each reporting period based upon the level

of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value The inputs used to measure the fair

value are identified in the following hierarchy

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities or

unadjusted quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets

that are not active or inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for

the asset or liability

Level Inputs reflect managements best estimate of what market participants would

use in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date Consideration is

given to the risk inherent in the valuation technique and the risk inherent in

the inputs to the model
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All financial assets and liabilities held by the Company at December31 2013 and 2012 are classified as Level

or Level as summarized in Note Fair Value Measurements

Cash and Cash Equivalents All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less

when purchased are considered to be cash and cash equivalents

Investments Investments consist primarily of investment-grade marketable securities Trading securities

are carried at fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses included in net income Realized gains and

losses are accounted for on the specific identification method Purchases and sales are recorded on trade

date basis Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments at the time of acquisition

and reevaluates such determination at each balance sheet date

Concentration of Credit Risk The Company sells products to wide variety of customers Accounts

receivable are carried at their outstanding principal amounts less an allowance for doubtful accounts The

Company extends credit to its customers based on an evaluation of the customers financial condition generally
without requiring collateral although the Company normally requires advance payments or letters of credit on

large equipment orders Credit risk is driven by conditions within the economy and the industry and is principally

dependent on each customers financial condition To minimize credit risk the Company monitors credit levels

and financial conditions of customers on continuing basis After considering historical trends for uncollectible

accounts current economic conditions and specific customer recent payment history and financial stability

the Company records an allowance for doubtful accounts at level which management believes is sufficient

to cover probable credit losses Amounts are deemed past due when they exceed the payment terms agreed
to by the customer in the sales contract Past due amounts are charged off when reasonable collection efforts

have been exhausted and the amounts are deemed uncollectible by management As of December 31 2013
concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables are limited due to the wide variety of customers and

industries in which the Company operates

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts The following table represents rollforward of the allowance for doubtful

accounts for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 in thousands

_______________________________________________
Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Reserve balance beginning of year 2143 2398 1820

Provision 629 759 1510
Write offs 1042 764 884
Other 22 250 48
Reserve balance end of year 1708 2143 2398

Inventories Inventory costs include materials labor and overhead Inventories excluding used equipment
are stated at the lower of first-in first-out cost or market Used equipment inventories are stated at the lower

of specific unit cost or market

When the Company determines that the value of inventory has become impaired through damage deterioration

obsolescence changes in price levels excessive levels of inventory or other causes the Company reduces

the carrying value to estimated market value based on estimates assumptions and judgments made from the

information available at that time Abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense freight handling cost and wasted

materials are recognized as current period charges

Property and Equipment Property and equipment is stated at cost Depreciation is calculated for financial

reporting purposes using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows

airplanes 20 years buildings 40 years and equipment to 10 years Both accelerated and straight-line

methods are used for tax compliance purposes Routine repair and maintenance costs and planned major

maintenance are expensed when incurred

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets The Companys intangible assets are classified as either intangible

assets with definite lives subject to amortization or goodwill
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company tests intangible assets with definite lives for impairment if conditions exist that indicate the

carrying value may not be recoverable Such conditions may include an economic downturn in geographic

market or change in the assessment of future operations An impairment charge is recorded when the

carrying value of the definite lived intangible asset is not recoverable by the future undiscounted cash flows

generated from the use of the asset

The Company determines the useful lives of identifiable intangible assets after considering the specific facts

and circumstances related to each intangible asset Factors considered when determining useful lives include

the contractual terms of agreements the history of the asset the Companys long-term strategy for the use

of the asset any laws or other local regulations which could impact the useful life of the asset and other

economic factors including competition and specific market conditions Intangible assets that are deemed to

have definite lives are amortized over their useful lives ranging from to 15 years

Goodwill is not amortized The Company tests goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently if events

or circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired The tests utilize two-step method at the reporting

unit level The Companys reporting units are typically defined as either subsidiaries or combination of two

subsidiaries No impairment was indicated in these tests in 2013 2012 and 2011

The first step of the goodwill impairment test compares book value of reporting unit including goodwill

with the units fair value In this first step the Company estimates the fair values of each of its reporting units

that have goodwill using the income approach The income approach uses reporting units projection of

estimated future operating results and cash flows which are then discounted using weighted average cost

of capital determined based on current market conditions for the individual reporting unit The projection uses

managements best estimates of cash flows over the projection period based on estimates of annual and

terminal growth rates in sales and costs changes in operating margins selling general and administrative

expenses working capital requirements and capital expenditures

The fair value of the operating subsidiaries/reporting units that do not have goodwill are estimated using either

the income or market approaches depending on which approach is the most appropriate for each reporting

unit The fair value of the reporting units that serve operating units in supporting roles such as the captive

insurance company and the corporate reporting unit are estimated using the cost approach The sum of the

fair values of all reporting units is compared to its calculation of the fair value of the consolidated Company

using the market approach which is inferred from the market capitalization of the Company at the date of the

valuation to confirm that the Companys estimation of the fair value of its reporting units is reasonable

If the book value of reporting unit exceeds its fair value an indication of possible goodwill impairment the

second step of the impairment test must be performed to determine the amount if any of goodwill impairment

In this second step the total implied fair value of the reporting units goodwill is estimated by allocating the fair

value of the reporting unit to all its assets including any unrecognized intangible assets and liabilities other

than goodwill The difference between the total fair value of the reporting unit and the fair value of its assets

and liabilities other than goodwill is the implied fair value of its goodwill The amount of any impairment loss is

equal to the excess if any of the book value of the goodwill over the implied fair value of its goodwill

Determining the step one fair values of the Companys reporting units involves the use of significant estimates

and assumptions Due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making these estimates and assumptions actual

results could differ materially from those estimates

Impairment of Long-lived Assets In the event that facts and circumstances indicate the carrying amounts

of long-lived assets may be impaired an evaluation of recoverability is performed If an evaluation is required

the estimated future undiscounted cash flows associated with the asset are compared to the carrying amount

for each asset or group of assets to determine if writedown is required If this review indicates that the

assets will not be recoverable the carrying values of the impaired assets are reduced to their estimated

fair value Fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows prices for similar assets or other valuation

techniques
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Self-Insurance Reserves The Company retains the risk for portion of its workers compensation claims and

general liability claims by way of captive insurance company Astec Insurance Company Astec Insurance

or the captive Astec Insurance is incorporated under the laws of the state of Vermont The objectives of

Astec Insurance are to improve control over and reduce the cost of claims to improve focus on risk reduction

with development of program structure which rewards proactive loss control and to ensure management

participation in the defense and settlement process for claims

For general liability claims the captive is liable for the first $1000000 per occurrence and $3000000 per

year in the aggregate The Company carries general liability excess liability and umbrella policies for claims

in excess of those covered by the captive

For workers compensation claims the captive is liable for the first $350000 per occurrence and $2750000 per

year in the aggregate The Company utilizes large national insurance company as third party administrator

for workers compensation claims and carries insurance coverage for claims liabilities in excess of amounts
covered by the captive

The financial statements of the captive are consolidated into the financial statements of the Company The

short-term and long-term reserves for claims and potential claims related to general liability and workers

compensation under the captive are included in accrued loss reserves or other long-term liabilities

respectively in the consolidated balance sheets depending on the expected timing of future payments The

undiscounted reserves are actuarially determined to cover the ultimate cost of each claim based on the

Companys evaluation of the type and severity of individual claims and historical information primarily its own
claims experience along with assumptions about future events Changes in assumptions as well as changes
in actual experience could cause these estimates to change in the future However the Company does not

believe it is reasonably likely that the reserve level will materially change in the foreseeable future

At all but one of the Companys domestic manufacturing subsidiaries the Company is self-insured for health

and prescription claims under its Group Health Insurance Plan The Company carries reinsurance coverage
to limit its exposure for individual health claims above certain limits Third parties administer health claims and

prescription medication claims The Company maintains reserve for the self-insured health plan which is

included in accrued loss reserves on the Companys consolidated balance sheets This reserve includes both

unpaid claims and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported based on historical claims and payment
experience Historically the reserves have been sufficient to provide for claims payments Changes in actual

claims experience or payment patterns could cause the reserve to change but the Company does not believe

it is reasonably likely that the reserve level will materially change in the near future

The remaining U.S subsidiary is covered under fully insured group health plan Employees of the Companys
foreign subsidiaries are insured under separate health plans No reserves are necessary for these fully insured

health plans

Revenue Recognition Revenue is generally recognized on sales at the point in time when persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists the price is fixed or determinable the product has been delivered or

services have been rendered and there is reasonable assurance of collection of the sales proceeds The

Company generally obtains purchase authorizations from its customers for specified amount of products
at specified price with specified delivery terms significant portion of the Companys equipment sales

represents equipment produced in the Companys plants under short-term contracts for specific customer

project or equipment designed to meet customers specific requirements Most of the equipment sold by
the Company is based on standard configurations some of which are modified to meet customer needs

or specifications The Company provides customers with technical design and performance specifications

and performs pre-shipment testing to ensure the equipment performs according to design specifications

regardless of whether the Company provides installation services in addition to selling the equipment

Certain contracts include terms and conditions pursuant to which the Company recognizes revenues upon
completion of equipment production which is subsequently stored at the Companys plant at the customers

request Revenue is recorded on such contracts upon the customers assumption of title and risk of ownership
and when collectability is reasonably assured In addition there must be fixed schedule of delivery of the

goods consistent with the customers business practices the Company must not have retained any specific

performance obligations such that the earnings process is not complete and the goods must have been

segregated from the Companys inventory prior to revenue recognition
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The Company accounts for certain sales as multiple-element arrangements whereby the revenue attributable

to the sale of product is recognized when the product is shipped and the revenue attributable to services

provided with respect to the product such as installation services is recognized when the service is

performed Consideration is determined using the fair value method and approximates sales price of the

product shipped or service performed The Company evaluates sales with multiple deliverable elements such

as an agreement to deliver equipment and related installation services to determine whether revenue related

to individual elements should be recognized separately or as combined unit In addition to the previously

mentioned general revenue recognition criteria the Company only recognizes revenue on individual delivered

elements when there is objective and reliable evidence that the delivered element has determinable value

to the customer on standalone basis and there is no right of return

The Company presents in the statements of income any taxes assessed by governmental authority that are

directly imposed on revenue-producing transactions between the Company and its customers such as sales

use value-added and some excise taxes on net excluded from revenue basis

Advertising Expense The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred The Company incurred $3770000

$4223000 and $3346000 in advertising costs during 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively which is included

in selling general and administrative expenses

Income Taxes Income taxes are based on pre-tax financial accounting income Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are recognized for the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts The Company periodically assesses the need to establish

valuation allowances against its deferred tax assets to the extent the Company no longer believes it is more

likely than not that the tax assets will be fully utilized

The Company evaluates tax position to determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax position will

be sustained upon examination based upon the technical merits of the position tax position that meets the

more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is subject to measurement assessment to determine the amount

of benefit to recognize and the appropriate reserve to establish if any If tax position does not meet the

more-likely-than-not recognition threshold no benefit is recognized The Company is periodically audited by

U.S federal and state as well as foreign tax authorities While it is often difficult to predict final outcome or

timing of resolution of any particular tax matter the Company believes its reserve for uncertain tax positions

is adequate to reduce the uncertain positions to the greatest amount of benefit that is more likely than not

realizable

Product Warranty Reserve The Company accrues for the estimated cost of product warranties at the

time revenue is recognized Warranty obligations by product line or model are evaluated based on historical

warranty claims experience For machines the Companys standard product warranty terms generally include

post-sales support and repairs of products at no additional charge for periods ranging from three months

to two years or up to specified number of hours of operation For parts from component suppliers the

Company relies on the original manufacturers warranty that accompanies those parts Generally Company
fabricated parts are not covered by specific warranty terms Although failure of fabricated parts due to material

or workmanship is rare if it occurs the Companys policy is to replace fabricated parts at no additional charge

The Company engages in extensive product quality programs and processes including actively monitoring

and evaluating the quality of our component suppliers Estimated warranty obligations are based upon

warranty terms product failure rates repair costs and current period machine shipments If actual product

failure rates repair costs service delivery costs or post-sales support costs differ from our estimates revisions

to the estimated warranty liability would be required

Pension and Retirement Plans The determination of obligations and expenses under the Companys

pension plan is dependent on the Companys selection of certain assumptions used by independent actuaries

in calculating such amounts Those assumptions are described in Note 13 Pension and Retirement Plans

and include among others the discount rate expected return on plan assets and the expected mortality rates

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States actual results that differ

from assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore generally affect the

recognized expense in such periods Significant differences in actual experience or significant changes in the

assumptions used may materially affect the pension obligations and future expenses
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The Company recognizes the overfunded or underfunded status of its pension plan as an asset or liability

Actuarial gains and losses amortization of prior service cost credit and amortization of transition obligations

are recognized through other comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur The Company

measures the funded status of its pension plan as of the date of the Companys fiscal year-end

Stock-based Compensation The Company currently has stock-based compensation plans in effect for its

employees whereby participants may earn restricted stock units The plans were put in place during 2006 and

2011 and will continue through at least 2015 These plans are more fully described in Note 17 Shareholders

Equity The Company recognizes the cost of employee services received in exchange for equity awards in the

financial statements based on the grant date calculated fair value of the awards The Company recognizes

stock-based compensation expense over the period during which an employee is required to provide service

in exchange for the award the vesting period

Restricted stock units RSUs awarded under the Companys 2006 Incentive Plan were granted shortly

after the end of each year through 2010 based upon the performance of the Company and its individual

subsidiaries RSUs were granted for performance in each of the years from 2006 through 2010 with additional

RSUs granted based upon cumulative five-year performance Upon the expiration of the 2006 Incentive Plan

the Company adopted 2011 Incentive Plan which operates similar to the 2006 Incentive Plan for each of the

five years ending December31 2015 The Company estimates the number of shares that will be granted for

the most recent fiscal year end and the five-year cumulative performance based on actual and expected future

operating results Compensation expense for RSUs expected to be granted for the most recent fiscal year and

the cumulative five-year based awards is calculated using the fair value of the Company stock at each period

end and is adjusted to the fair value as of each future period-end until granted

Earnings Per Share Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares

outstanding and diluted earnings per share includes potential dilutive effects of options restricted stock units

and shares held in the Companys supplemental executive retirement plan

The following table sets forth the compensation of net income attributable to controlling interest from continuing

operations and the number of basic and diluted earnings per share in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Numerator

Net income from continuing operations 39214 34210 40440

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests 172 161 102

Net income attributable to controlling interest from
39 042 34049 40338

continuing operations

Denominator

Denominator for basic earnings per share 22749 22680 22589

Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock options and restricted stock units 218 262 294

Supplemental executive retirement plan 114 109 101

Denominator for diluted earnings per share 23081 23051 22984

Antidilutive options were not included in the diluted EPS computation for the years presented The number of

antidilutive options in the three years ended December 31 2013 was not material

Derivatives and Hedging Activities The Company recognizes all derivatives in the consolidated balance

sheets at their fair value Derivatives that are not hedges are adjusted to fair value through income If the

derivative is hedge depending on the nature of the hedge changes in the fair value of derivatives are either

offset against the change in fair value of assets liabilities or firm commitments through income or recognized

in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in income The ineffective portion of

derivatives change in fair value is immediately recognized in income From time to time the Companys

foreign subsidiaries enter into foreign currency exchange contracts to mitigate exposure to fluctuation in

currency exchange rates See Note 14 Derivative Financial Instruments regarding foreign exchange contracts

outstanding at December 31 2013 and 2012
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Shipping and Handling Fees and Cost The Company records revenues earned for shipping and handling

as revenue while the cost of shipping and handling is classified as cost of goods sold

Litigation Contingencies In the normal course of business in the industry the Company is named as

defendant in number of legal proceedings associated with product liability and other matters See Note 16

Contingent Matters for additional discussion of the Companys legal contingencies

Business Combinations The Company accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method

Accordingly intangible assets are recorded apart from goodwill if they arise from contractual or legal rights

or if they are separable from goodwill Related third party acquisition costs are expensed as incurred and

contingent consideration is booked at its fair value as part of the purchase price

Subsequent Events Review Management has evaluated events occurring between December 31 2013

and the date these financial statements were filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission for proper

recording or disclosure therein

Restatement of Previously Issued Financial Statements

During 2013 the Company identified errors related to the elimination of intercompany profits on interdivisional

sales within the Asphalt Group from 2009 through June 30 2013 Management discovered the errors during

its month-end review of its September 2013 internal financial statements while investigating variance at one

of its subsidiaries The errors caused the gross margins income taxes profits retained earnings and inventory

levels previously reported for 2009 through June 30 2013 to be understated each period The adjustments

necessary to correct the errors do not have material impact on our previously presented financial statements

as of any date however the correction of the cumulative effect of the errors would have been material to our

income statement for 2013 The impact of the errors on the Companys first two quarters of 2013 results was

not material and as such the correction of the 2013 year-to-date error was recorded in the third quarter of

2013 The errors had no impact on total cash flows from operations as previously reported

In accordance with applicable accounting guidance an adjustment to the financial statements for each

individual period presented is required to reflect the correction of the period-specific effects of the errors

described above Consequently the Company has restated the consolidated financial statements included

herein to correct for these errors The cumulative impact of the errors was an understatement of finished

goods inventory and retained earnings at December31 2012 by $4061000 and $2736000 at December

31 2011 by $3049000 and $2115000 and at December 31 2010 by $2008000 and $1470000

respectively The December 31 consolidated balance sheets for each of these periods have been restated

accordingly Additionally the accompanying consolidated income statements for the periods ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 have been restated to reflect the correction by increasing gross profit and

pretax income by $1012000 and $1041000 and increasing net income from continuing operations by

$621000 and $645000 respectively Basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ending December

31 2012 and 2011 were increased by $0.03 in the restated financial statements

Inventories

Inventories consist of the following in thousands

____________________________________________________________
December 31

2012

Raw materials and parts 139372 129676

Work-in-process 74663 76052

Finished goods 99812 85061

Used equipment 28466 21 894

Total 342313 312683
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Fair Value Measurements

The Company has various financial instruments that must be measured at fair value on recurring basis

including marketable debt and equity securities held by Astec Insurance Company Astec Insurance the

Companys captive insurance company and marketable equity securities held in an unqualified Supplemental

Executive Retirement Plan SERP The financial assets held in the SERP also constitute liability
of the

Company for financial reporting purposes The Companys subsidiaries also occasionally enter into foreign

currency exchange contracts to mitigate exposure to fluctuations in currency exchange rates

For cash and cash equivalents trade receivables other receivables revolving debt and accounts payable the

carrying amount approximates the fair value because of the short-term nature of these instruments Investments

are carried at their fair value based on quoted market prices for identical or similar assets or where no quoted

prices exist other observable inputs for the asset The fair values of foreign currency exchange contracts are

based on quotations from various banks for similar instruments using models with market based inputs

As indicated in the tables below the Company has determined that its financial assets and liabilities at

December31 2013 and 2012 are level and level in the fair value hierarchy in thousands

December 31 2013

Financial Assets

Trading equity securities

SERP money market fund

SERP mutual funds

Preferred stocks

Short-term investments in mutual funds

Trading debt securities

Corporate bonds

Municipal bonds

Floating rate notes

U.S Treasury bill

Other government bonds

Derivative financial instruments
_____________ _____________

Level Level Level Total

783

2813

1170

16073

3696

103

250

783

2813

1170

16073

4851

1908

549

250

864

452

1155

1908

446

864

452

Total financial assets 24888 4825 -- 29713

Financial Liabilities

SERP liabilities
-- 7828 -- 7828

Total financial liabilities
-- 7828 -- 7828
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December 31 2012

The Company reevaluates the volume of trading activity for each of its investments at the end of each

reporting period and adjusts the level within the fair value hierarchy as needed Due to decreased trading

activity $564000 of investments included in Level at December 31 2012 were transferred to Level at

December 31 2013

Investments

The Companys trading securities consist of the following in thousands

Gross Gross Fair Value

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Net Carrying

Cost Gains Losses Amount
December 31 2013

Trading equity securities 19411 1459 31 20839

Trading debt securities 8385 174 137 8422
Total 27796 1633 168 29261

December 31 2012

Tradingequitysecurities 3432 130 11 3551

Trading debt securities 7836 228 49 8015
Total 11268 358 60 11566

Trading equity investments noted above are valued at their estimated fair value based on their quoted market

prices and trading debt securities are valued based upon mix of observable market prices and model driven

prices derived from matrix of observable market prices for assets with similar characteristics obtained from

nationally recognized third party pricing service Additionally significant portion of the trading equity

securities are in equity money market and mutual funds and also comprise portion of the Companys liability

under its SERP See Note 13 Pension and Retirement Plans for additional information on these investments

and the SERP

Trading debt securities are comprised mainly of marketable debt securities held by Astec Insurance Astec

Insurance has an investment strategy that focuses on providing regular and predictable interest income from

diversified portfolio of high-quality fixed income securities

Net unrealized gains or losses incurred during 2013 2012 and 2011 on investments still held as of the end

of each reporting period amounted to $175000 $173000 and $77000 respectively

Level Level Level Total

Financial Assets

Trading equity securities

SERP money market fund 996 -- -- 996

SERP mutual funds 1835 -- -- 1835

Preferred stocks 720 -- -- 720

Trading debt securities

Corporate bonds 3342 909 -- 4251

Municipal bonds 1449 957 -- 2406

Floating rate notes 749 -- -- 749

U.S Treasury bill 200 -- -- 200

Other government bonds -- 409 -- 409

Total financial assets 9291 2275 -- 11566

Financial Liabilities

SERP liabilities -- 6674 -- 6674
Derivative financial instruments -- 145 -- 145

Total financial liabilities -- 6819 -- 6819
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in

business combinations Current U.S accounting guidance provides that goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible

assets be tested for impairment at least annually The Company performs the required valuation procedures

each year as of December 31 after the following years forecasts are submitted and reviewed The valuations

performed in 2013 2012 and 2011 indicated no impairment of goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reporting segment during the years ended December 31

2013 and 2012 are as follows in thousands

Aggregate Mobile

Asphalt and Mining Asphalt Paving Underground

Group Group Group Group Other Total

Balance December 31 2011 5922 6339 2728 -- -- 14989

Foreign currency translation -- -- 22 -- -- 22

Balance December 31 2012 5922 6339 2750 -- -- 15011

Foreign currency translation -- -- 46 -- -- 46

Balance December 31 2013 5922 6339 2796 -- -- 15057

Long-lived and Intangible Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable Impairment losses for long-lived assets held and used

are recorded if the sum of the estimated future undiscounted cash flows used to test for recoverability is less

than the carrying value

As result of certain aviation equipment being classified as held for sale in 2011 an impairment charge was

recorded in the amount of $2304000 in selling general and administrative expenses by the All Others Group

to reduce the carrying value of the asset to its fair value as determined based upon the industry blue book

valuations of used aircraft level in the fair value hierarchy Additional impairment charges of $394000 were

recorded in 2011 related to long-lived assets in the Underground Group Other charges related to inventory

valuation of $1845000 due to the sale of the utility product line assets were included in cost of sales in the

Underground Group An additional impairment charge of $26000 was recorded in 2011 by the Asphalt Group

related to long-lived assets

Amortization expense on intangible assets was $1066000 $1855000 and $573000 for 2013 2012 and

2011 respectively Intangible assets which are included in other long-term assets on the accompanying

consolidated balance sheets consisted of the following at December 31 2013 and 2012 in thousands

2012
_________

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying

Value Amortization Value

Intangible asset amortization expense is expected to be $932000 $831000 $807000 $693000 and

$601000 in the years ending December 31 2014 2015 2016 2017 and 2018 respectively and $2679000

thereafter

2013

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying

Value Amortization Value

Dealer network and

customer relationships 6678 3019 3659 7062 2527 4535

Trade names 2575 353 2222 2609 184 2425

Other 1535 873 662 1524 659 865

Total 10788 4245 6543 11195 3370 7825
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following in thousands

December 31

2012

Land 13952 13000

Building and land improvements 136000 130105

Manufacturing and office equipment 227641 217047
Aviation equipment 14913 14852

Less accumulated depreciation 207986 192165
Total 184520 182839

Depreciation expense was $20966000 $20945000 and $18551000 for the years ended December 31
2013 2012 and 2011 respectively

Leases

The Company leases certain land buildings and equipment for use in its operations under various operating

leases Total rental expense charged to operations under operating leases was approximately $2436000
$2753000 and $2472000 for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively

Minimum rental commitments for all noncancelable operating leases at December 31 2013 are as follows in

thousands

2013 $1272

2014 578

2015 367

2016 109

2017 79

Thereafter 37

$2442

10 Debt

On April 12 2012 the Company and certain of its subsidiaries entered into an amended and restated credit

agreement with Wells Fargo whereby Wells Fargo extended to the Company an unsecured line of credit of

up to $100000000 including sub-limit for letters of credit of up to $25000000 The amended and restated

credit agreement replaced the expiring $100000000 credit
facility

between the Company and Wells Fargo
There were no outstanding revolving or term loan borrowings under the credit facilities at the time of transition

or as of December 31 2013 Letters of credit totaling $6943000 were outstanding under the new agreement

as of December 31 2013 resulting in additional borrowing ability of $93057000 on the Wells Fargo credit

facility as of December 31 2013 The amended and restated agreement has five-year term expiring in April

2017 Borrowings under the agreement are subject to an interest rate equal to the daily one-month LIBOR

rate plus 0.75% margin The unused facility fee is 0.175% Interest only payments are due monthly The

amended and restated credit agreement contains certain financial covenants including provisions concerning

required levels of annual net income minimum tangible net worth and maximum allowed capital expenditures

The Company was in compliance with these covenants as of December 31 2013

The Companys South African subsidiary Osborn Engineered Products SA Pty Ltd Osborn has credit

facility
of $7146000 ZAR 75000000 to finance short-term working capital needs as well as to cover

performance letters of credit advance payment and retention guarantees As of December 31 2013 Osborn

had no cash borrowings and $648000 in performance advance payment and retention guarantees outstanding

under the facility The facility is unsecured and no unused
facility

fees are charged As of December 31 2013
Osborn had available credit under the facility of $6498000 The interest rate is 0.25% less than the South

Africa prime rate resulting in rate of 8.25% as of December 31 2013
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11 Product Warranty Reserves

The Company warrants its products against manufacturing defects and performance to specified standards

The warranty period and performance standards vary by product but generally range from three months

to two years or up to specified number of hours of operation The Company estimates the costs that may

be incurred under its warranties and records liability at the time product sales are recorded The warranty

liability is primarily based on historical claim rates nature of claims and the associated costs

Changes in the Companys product warranty liability during 2013 2012 and 2011 are as follows in thousands

4siK 2012 2011

Reserve balance beginning of year 1052 12663 9891

Warranty liabilities accrued 12199 11152 13029

Warranty liabilities settled 10171 11022 10567

Other 364 1741 310

Reserve balance end of year 12716 11052 12663

12 Accrued Loss Reserves

The Company accrues reserves for losses related to known workers compensation and general liability

claims that have been incurred but not yet paid or are estimated to have been incurred but not yet reported to

the Company The undiscounted reserves are actuarially determined based on the Companys evaluation of

the type and severity of individual claims and historical information primarily its own claim experience along

with assumptions about future events Changes in assumptions as well as changes in actual experience

could cause these estimates to change in the future Total accrued loss reserves at December 31 2013

were $7344000 compared to $7315000 at December 31 2012 of which $4016000 and $4094000 was

included in other long-term liabilities at December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

13 Pension and Retirement Plans

Prior to December 31 2003 all employees of the Companys Kolberg-Pioneer Inc subsidiary were covered

by defined benefit pension plan After December 31 2003 all benefit accruals under the plan ceased and

no new employees could become participants in the plan Benefits paid under this plan are based on years of

service multiplied by monthly amount The Companys funding policy for the plan is to make the minimum

annual contributions required by applicable regulations

The Companys investment strategy for the plan is to earn rate of return sufficient to match or exceed the long

term growth of pension liabilities The investment policy states that the Plan Committee in its sole discretion

shall determine the allocation of plan assets among the following four asset classes cash equivalents fixed

income securities domestic equities and international equities The Plan Committee attempts to ensure

adequate diversification of the invested assets through investment in an exchange traded mutual fund that

invests in diversified portfolio of stocks bonds and money market securities
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The following provides information regarding benefit obligations plan assets and the funded status of the plan

in thousands except as noted

2013

Ppnsinn Benefits

2012

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation beginning of year 14958 13699

Interest cost 561 599

Actuarial gain/loss 1178 1161

Benefits paid 526 501

Benefit obligation end of year 13815 14958

Accumulated benefit obligation 13815 14958

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year Level 10784 9378

Actual gain on plan assets 1624 1152

Employer contribution 81 755

Benefits paid 526 501
Fair value of plan assets end of year Level 12693 10784

Funded status end of year 1122 4174
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

Noncurrent liabilities 1122 4174
Net amount recognized 1122 4174
Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income

consist of

Net loss 4076 6721

Net amount recognized 4076 6721

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations

as of December 31

Discount rate 4.60% 3.82%

Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00%

Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A

The measurement date used for the plan was December 31

In determining the expected return on plan assets the historical experience of the plan assets the current and

expected allocation of the plan assets and the expected long-term rates of return were considered

All assets in the plan are invested in an exchange traded mutual fund The allocation of assets within the

mutual fund as of the measurement date December 31 and the target asset allocation ranges by asset

category are as follows

2013

Actual Allocation 2013 2012 Target
Asset Category

2012 Allocation Ranges

Equity securities 65.4% 63.5% 53 73%

Debt securities 27.8% 32.6% 21 -41%

Money market funds 6.8% 3.9% 15%

Total 100.0% 100.0%
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Net periodic benefit cost for 2013 2012 and 2011 included the following components in thousands except

as noted

Pension_Benefits

2012 2011

Components of net periodic benefit cost

Interest cost 561 599 604

Expected return on plan assets 693 648 741
Amortization of actuarial loss 536 502 257

Net periodic benefit cost 404 453 120

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in

other comprehensive income

Net actuarial gain/Ioss for the year 2109 656 2864

Amortization of net gain/Ioss 536 502 257
Total recognized in other comprehensive income 2645 154 2607

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other comprehensive

income 2241 607 2727

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic

benefit cost for years ended December 31

Discount rate 3.82% 4.46% 5.40%

Expected return on plan assets 7.00% 7.00% 8.00%

The Company expects to contribute $353000 to the plan during 2014

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost

in 2014 for the amortization of net loss is $295000

The following estimated future benefit payments are expected to be paid in the years indicated in thousands

Pension Benefits

2014 680

2015 720

2016 750

2017 790

2018 820

2019-2023 4370

The Company sponsors 401k defined contribution plan to provide eligible employees with additional

income upon retirement The Companys contributions to the plan are based on employee contributions

The Companys contributions totaled $4941000 $5099000 and $4515000 in 2013 2012 and 2011

respectively

The Company maintains Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan SERP for certain of its executive

officers The plan is non-qualified deferred compensation plan administered by the Board of Directors of

the Company pursuant to which the Company makes quarterly cash contributions of certain percentage

of executive officers compensation Investments are self-directed by participants and can include Company
stock Upon retirement participants receive their apportioned share of the plan assets in the form of cash
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Assets of the SERP consist of the following in thousands

December 31 2013 December 31 2012

Cost Market Cost Market

Company stock 2786 4232 2855 3844

Equity securities 3241 3596 2745 2830

Total 6027 7828 5600 6674

The Company periodically adjusts the deferred compensation liability
such that the balance of the liability

equals the total fair market value of all assets held by the trust established under the SERP Such liabilities are

included in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets The equity securities are included

in investments in the consolidated balance sheets and classified as trading equity securities See Note

Investments for additional information The cost of the Company stock held by the plan is included as

reduction in shareholders equity in the consolidated balance sheets

The change in the fair market value of Company stock held in the SERP results in charge or credit to selling

general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of income because the acquisition cost

of the Company stock in the SERP is recorded as reduction of shareholders equity and is not adjusted

to fair market value however the related liability
is adjusted to the fair market value of the stock as of each

period end The Company recognized expense of $601000 and $115000 in 2013 and 2012 respectively

and income of $45000 in 2011 related to the change in the fair value of the Company stock held in the SERP

14 Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing business operations The primary risk

managed by using derivative instruments is foreign currency risk From time to time the Companys foreign

subsidiaries enter into foreign currency exchange contracts to mitigate exposure to fluctuations in currency

exchange rates The fair value of the derivative financial instrument is recorded on the Companys balance

sheet and is adjusted to fair value at each measurement date The changes in fair value are recognized in

the consolidated statements of income in the current period The Company does not engage in speculative

transactions nor does it hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes The average U.S

dollar equivalent notional amount of outstanding foreign currency exchange contracts was $1 1543000 during

2013 At December 31 2013 the Company reported $452000 of derivative assets in other current assets

The Company reported $145000 of derivative liabilities in other accrued liabilities as of December 31 2012

The Company recognized as component of cost of sales net gain on the change in fair value of derivative

instruments of $1061000 for the year ended December 31 2013 The Company recognized as component

of cost of sales net loss on the change in fair value of derivative instruments of $594000 and $144000 for

the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively There were no derivatives that were designated

as hedges at December 31 2013 or 2012

15 Income Taxes

For financial reporting purposes income from continuing operations before income taxes includes the following

components in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Continuing operations

United States 53315 47400 52583

Foreign 4927 6297 7590

Income from continuing operations before income taxes 58242 53697 60173
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The provision for income taxes consists of the following in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Continuing operations

Current provision

Federal 16239 9637 17167

State 2785 2096 3245

Foreign 2664 1996 1481

Total current provision 21688 13729 21893

Deferred provision benefit

Federal 885 6135 1903
State 923 768 677
Foreign 852 391 420

Total deferred provision benefit 2660 5758 2160
Total provision

Federal 15354 15772 15264

State 1862 1328 2568

Foreign 1812 2387 1901

Income tax provision on continuing operations 19028 19487 19733

Income tax provision benefit on discontinued operations -- 3796 56
Total tax provision 19028 23283 19677

The Companys income tax provision is computed based on the domestic and foreign federal statutory rates

and the average state statutory rates net of related federal benefit

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax

rate to income before income taxes reconciliation of the provision for income taxes at the statutory federal

income tax rate to the amount provided is as follows in thousands

20385

1395
1105

464

2054
810

287

18794

958
758

360

419
1034

82

21061

1228
1651

370

2135
62

48

2013

Year Ended December 31

Continuing operations

Tax at the statutory federal income tax rate

Qualified production activity deduction

State income tax net of federal income tax

Other permanent differences

Research and development tax credits

Change in valuation allowance

Other items

2012 2011

Income tax provision on continued operations 19028 19487 19733

Income tax provision benefit on discontinued operations -- 3796 56
Total tax provision 19028 23283 19677
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes

Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows in thousands

December 31

2012

Deferred tax assets

Inventory reserves 6340 3702

Warranty reserves 3558 2894

Bad debt reserves 636 678

State tax loss carryforwards 2100 2001

Accrued vacation 1805 1797

SERP 1245 1180

Deferred compensation 1226 790

Restricted stock units 2601 2963

Foreign exchange gains/losses 2345 683

Pension and post-employment benefits 1498 2475

Other 6684 4856

Valuation allowances 4354 3065
Total deferred tax assets 25684 20954

Deferred tax liabilities

Property and equipment 1971 18933

Amortization 1200 1120

Goodwill 2012 1770

Pension 1132 1186

Foreign tax rate differential 3681 2873

Total deferred tax liabilities 27736 25882

Total net deferred liabilities 2052 4928

As of December31 2013 the Company has state net operating loss carryforwards of $48342000 foreign net

operating loss carryforwards of approximately $5181000 and state tax credit carryforwards of $1200000

for tax purposes which will be available to offset future taxable income If not used these carryforwards

will expire between 2014 and 2027 significant portion of the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

relates to the future utilization of state and foreign net operating loss and state tax credit carryforwards

Future utilization of these net operating loss and state tax credit carryforwards is evaluated by the Company

on periodic basis and the valuation allowance is adjusted accordingly In 2013 the valuation allowance on

these carryforwards was increased by $1322000 due to uncertainty about whether certain entities will realize

their state net operating loss and state tax credit carryforwards The Company has also determined that the

recovery of certain other deferred tax assets is uncertain The valuation allowance for these deferred tax

assets was decreased by $33000

Undistributed earnings of the Companys Canadian subsidiary Breaker Technology Ltd are considered to be

indefinitely reinvested accordingly no provision for U.S federal and state income taxes has been provided

thereon Upon repatriation of those earnings in the form of dividends or otherwise the Company would be

subject to both U.S income taxes subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits and withholding taxes

payable to Canada The cumulative amount of Breaker Technology Ltd.s unrecovered basis difference is

$8100000 as of December31 2013 The determination of the unrecognized deferred tax
liability on the basis

difference is not practical at this time

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federal jurisdiction and in various state and foreign

jurisdictions The Company is no longer subject to U.S federal income tax examinations by authorities for

years prior to 2010 With few exceptions the Company is no longer subject to state and local or non-U.S

income tax examinations by authorities for years prior to 2007
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The Company has
liability

for unrecognized tax benefits of $1 933000 and $2095000 excluding accrued

interest and penalties as of December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively The Company recognizes interest

and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense The Company recognized tax

benefits of $101000 and $178000 in 2013 and 2012 respectively for penalties and interest related to

amounts that were settled for less than previously accrued The net total amount of unrecognized tax benefits

that if recognized would affect the Companys effective tax rate is $1954000 and $2125000 at December

31 2013 and 2012 respectively The Company does not expect significant increase or decrease to the total

amount of unrecognized tax benefits within the next twelve months

reconciliation of the beginning and ending unrecognized tax benefits excluding interest and penalties is as

follows in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Balance beginning of year 2095 1682 1025

Additions for tax positions related to the current year 102 396 546

Additions for tax positions related to prior years 128 90 192

Reductions due to lapse of statutes of limitations 149 73 81
Decreases related to settlements with tax authorities 243 -- --

Balance end of year 1933 2095 1682

The December 31 2013 balance of unrecognized tax benefits includes no tax positions for which the ultimate

deductibility is highly certain but the timing of such deductibility is uncertain Accordingly there is no impact to

the deferred tax accounting for certain tax benefits

16 Contingent Matters

Certain customers have financed purchases of Company products through arrangements in which the

Company is contingently liable for customer debt of $693000 and $2091000 at December 31 2013 and

2012 respectively At December 31 2013 the maximum potential amount of future payments for which

the Company would be liable is equal to $693000 These arrangements also provide that the Company
will receive the lenders full security interest in the equipment financed if the Company is required to fulfill

its contingent liability under one of these arrangements The Company has recorded liability
of $121000

related to these guarantees at December31 2013

In addition the Company is contingently liable under letters of credit issued by Wells Fargo totaling $6943000

as of December 31 2013 including $1600000 letter of credit issued on behalf of Astec Australia The

outstanding letters of credit expire at various dates through November 2017 As of December 31 2013
Osborn and Astec Australia are contingently liable for total of $648000 and $851000 respectively in

performance advance payment and retention guarantees As of December 31 2013 the maximum potential

amount of future payments under these letters of credit and guarantees for which the Company could be liable

is $8442000

The Company is currently party to various claims and legal proceedings that have arisen in the ordinary

course of business If management believes that loss arising from such claims and legal proceedings is

probable and can reasonably be estimated the Company records the amount of the loss excluding estimated

legal fees or the minimum estimated liability when the loss is estimated using range and no point within the

range is more probable than another As management becomes aware of additional information concerning

such contingencies any potential liability related to these matters is assessed and the estimates are revised

if necessary If management believes that material loss arising from such claims and legal proceedings

is either probable but cannot be reasonably estimated or ii reasonably possible but not probable the

Company does not record the amount of the loss but does make specific disclosure of such matter Based

upon currently available information and with the advice of counsel management believes that the ultimate

outcome of its current claims and legal proceedings individually and in the aggregate will not have material

adverse effect on the Companys financial position cash flows or results of operations However claims and

legal proceedings are subject to inherent uncertainties and rulings unfavorable to the Company could occur If

an unfavorable ruling were to occur there exists the possibility of material adverse effect on the Companys
financial position cash flows or results of operations
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During 2004 the Company received notice from the Environmental Protection Agency that it may be

responsible for portion of the costs incurred in connection with an environmental cleanup in Illinois The

discharge of hazardous materials and associated cleanup relate to activities occurring prior to the Companys

acquisition of Barber-Greene in 1986 The Company believes that over 300 other parties have received similar

notice At this time the Company cannot predict whether the EPA will seek to hold the Company liable for

portion of the cleanup costs or the amount of any such liability The Company has not recorded liability
with

respect to the matter because no estimate of the amount if any of any such liability can be made at this time

17 Shareholders Equity

Beginning in 2006 and again in 2011 the Company implemented five-year plans to award key members

of management restricted stock units RSUs each year based upon annual financial performance of the

Company and its subsidiaries Each five-year plan allows up to 700000 of newly issued shares of Company

stock to be granted to employees The number of RSUs granted each year is determined based upon the

performance of individual subsidiaries and consolidated annual financial performance with additional RSUs

available for cumulative five-year results Generally each award vests at the end of five years from the date

of grant or at the time recipient retires after reaching age 65 if earlier The fair value of the RSUs that

vested during 2013 2012 and 2011 was $2405000 $2719000 and $406000 respectively The grant date

tax benefit was reduced by $77000 and $67000 upon the vesting of RSUs in 2013 and 2012 respectively

Compensation expense of $1231000 $1054000 and $2602000 was recorded in the years ended

December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively to reflect the fair value of RSUs granted or anticipated

to be granted for 2013 performance less estimated forfeitures amortized over the portion of the vesting

period occurring during the period Related income tax benefits of $417000 $387000 and $848000 were

recorded in 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Based upon the grant date fair value of RSUs it is anticipated

that $2431000 of additional compensation costs will be recognized in future periods through 2021 for RSUs

earned through December 31 2013 The weighted average period over which this additional compensation

cost will be expensed is 3.8 years RSUs do not participate in Company paid dividends

Changes in restricted stock units during the year ended December 31 2013 are as follows

The grant date fair value of the restricted stock units granted during 2013 2012 and 2011 was $763000

$1303000 and $4240000 respectively

The Company has adopted an Amended and Restated Shareholder Protection Rights Agreement and declared

distribution of one right the Right for each outstanding share of Company common stock par value

$0.20 per share the Common Stock Each Right entitles the registered holder other than the Acquiring

Person as defined below to purchase from the Company one one-hundredth of share Unit of Series

Participating Preferred Stock par value $1.00 per share the Preferred Stock at purchase price of

$72.00 per Unit subject to adjustment The Rights currently attach to the certificates representing shares of

outstanding Company Common Stock and no separate Rights certificates will be distributed The Rights will

separate from the Common Stock upon the earlier of ten business days unless otherwise delayed by the

Board following the public announcement that person or group of affiliated or associated persons the

Acquiring Person has acquired obtained the right to acquire or otherwise obtained beneficial ownership

of fifteen percent 15% or more of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock or commencement of

tender offer or exchange offer that would result in an Acquiring Person beneficially owning fifteen percent

15% or more of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock The Board of Directors may terminate the

Rights without any payment to the holders thereof at any time prior to the close of business ten business days

following announcement by the Company that person has become an Acquiring Person Once the Rights

Unvested restricted stock units beginning of year

Restricted stock units granted

Restricted stock units forfeited

Restricted stock units vested

Unvested restricted stock units end of year

Weighted Average

Grant Date

Fair Value

31.873123
21432

3595
68629
261704

35.61

34.97

37.95

30.54
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are separated from the Common Stock then the Rights entitle the holder other than the Acquiring Person to

purchase shares of Common Stock rather than Preferred Stock having current market value equal to twice

the Unit purchase price The Rights which do not have voting power and are not entitled to dividends expire

on December 22 2015 In the event of merger consolidation statutory share exchange or other transaction

in which shares of Common Stock are exchanged each Unit of Preferred Stock will be entitled to receive the

per share amount paid in respect of each share of Common Stock

18 Operations by Industry Segment and Geographic Area

The Company has four reportable segments These segments are combinations of business units that offer

similar products and services brief description of each segment is as follows

Asphalt Group This segment consists of three business units that design engineer manufacture and

market complete line of portable stationary and relocatable hot-mix asphalt plants and related components

and variety of heaters heat transfer processing equipment thermal fluid storage tanks concrete plants

and wood pellet plants The principal purchasers of these products are asphalt producers highway heavy

equipment contractors wood pellet processors and foreign and domestic governmental agencies

Aggregate and Mining Group This segment consists of seven business units that design engineer

manufacture and market complete line of rock crushers feeders conveyors screens and washing

equipment The principal purchasers of these products are open-mine and quarry operators

Mobile Asphalt Paving Group This segment consists of three business units that design engineer

manufacture and market asphalt payers asphalt material transfer vehicles milling machines and paver

screeds The principal purchasers of these products are highway and heavy equipment contractors and

foreign and domestic governmental agencies

Underground Group This segment consists of two business units that design engineer manufacture and

market complete line of drilling rigs for the oil and gas geothermal and water well industries and high

pressure diesel pump trailers for fracking and cleaning oil and gas wells This segment previously included

American Augers Inc which was sold in November 2012

All Others This category consists of the Companys other business units including Peterson Pacific Corp
Astec Australia Pty Ltd Astec Insurance Company and the parent company Astec Industries Inc that do not

meet the requirements for separate disclosure as an operating segment

The Company evaluates performance and allocates resources based on profit or loss from operations before

U.S federal income taxes and corporate overhead The accounting policies of the reportable segments are

the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting policies
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Intersegment sales and transfers are valued at prices comparable to those for unrelated parties For

management purposes the Company does not allocate U.S federal income taxes or corporate overhead

including interest expense to its business units

Segment information for 2013 in thousands

Aggregate Mobile

Asphalt and Mining Asphalt Paving Underground All

Group Group Group Group Others Total

Revenues from

external customers 237959 350514 168444 73104 $102977 932998

Intersegment revenues 14577 45435 17658 2304 -- 79974

Interest expense 11 12 -- 394 423

Depreciation and

amortization 4591 7906 3439 3526 2803 22265

Incometaxes 1573 2642 884 406 14335 19028

Segment profit loss 26962 33031 1767 4902 27375 39483

Segment assets 407483 427565 174743 78297 381257 469345

Capital expenditures 3300 15649 3343 3831 1550 27673

Segment information for 2012 in thousands
Aggregate Mobile

Asphalt and Mining Asphalt Paving Underground All

Group Group Group Group Others Total

Revenues from

externalcustomers 234562 355428 158115 82802 $105366 936273

Intersegment revenues 30697 25776 16474 1688 168 74803

Interest expense 49 32 -- 255 339

Depreciation and

amortization 4729 7381 3262 2934 2629 20935

Income taxes on

continuing operations 829 1582 348 230 17654 19487

Segment profit loss 22012 34687 10721 2238 30453 34729

Segment assets 386478 399832 157675 83744 392833 1420562

Capital expenditures 4430 9376 3239 7137 1836 26018

Segment information for 2011 in thousands

Aggregate Mobile

Asphalt and Mining Asphalt Paving Underground All

Group Group Group Group Others Total

Revenues from

external customers 260404 333278 187988 37683 89288 908641

Intersegment revenues 24925 25219 18629 5083 -- 73856

Interest expense 14 -- 168 190

Depreciation and

amortization 4268 6932 2788 1566 2451 18005

Income taxes on

continuing operations 1476 1834 1009 550 15964 19733

Segment profit loss 30275 31493 26485 7318 38549 42386

Segment assets 373186 359931 155676 134376 408903 1432072

Capital expenditures 9172 8138 6678 945 11197 36130
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The totals of segment information for all reportable segments reconciles to consolidated totals as follows in

thousands

Sales

Total external sales for reportable segments

Intersegment sales for reportable segments

Other sales

Elimination of intersegment sales

2013 2012 2011

830021

79974

102977

79974

830907

74635

105366

74635

819353

73856

89288

73856

Total consolidated sales 932998 936273 908641

Net income attributable to controlling interest

Total profit for reportable segments 66858 65182 80935

Other losses 27375 30453 38549

Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 172 161 102

Elimination of intersegment profit 269 519 1946
Income from discontinued operations net of tax -- 3401 225

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations net of tax -- 3378 --

Total consolidated net income attributable to controlling interest 39042 40828 40563

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 1088088 1027729 1023169

Other assets 381257 392833 408903

Elimination of intercompany profit in inventory 4679 4410 3890
Elimination of intercompany receivables 482768 469254 461721

Elimination of investment in subsidiaries 195199 186556 160988

Other eliminations 37408 31 559 85541

Total consolidated assets 749291 728783 719932

Interest expense

Total interest expense for reportable segments 29 84 22

Other interest expense 394 255 168

Total consolidated interest expense 423 339 190

Depreciation and amortization

Total depreciation and amortization for reportable segments 19462 18306 15554

Other depreciation and amortization 2803 2629 2451

Depreciation from discontinued operations
-- 2113 1254

Total consolidated depreciation and amortization 22265 23048 19259

Capital expenditures

Total capital expenditures for reportable segments 26123 24182 24933

Other capital expenditures 1550 1836 11197

Total consolidated capital expenditures 27673 26018 36130
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Sales into major geographic regions were as follows in thousands

2012 2011

United States 599054 572522 543527

Canada 70991 79554 82853
Africa 62911 60811 65472
Australia and Oceania 47505 62683 48890
South America excluding Brazil 33526 38049 57616

Post-Soviet States excluding Russia 25849 1533 12526

Russia 17440 14641 8494
Mexico 15917 23084 9885
Other European Countries 15428 20249 23653

Brazil 11620 15675 11602

Middle East 6699 6705 18215

Other Asian Countries 5836 8315 7200

Central America excluding Mexico 5620 6843 4156

West Indies 5294 2765 5461

China 3857 6687 2923
India 3672 4648 4476

Japan and Korea 1749 1509 1672
Other 30 -- 20

Total foreign 333944 363751 365114
Total consolidated sales 932998 936273 908641

Long-lived assets by major geographic region are as follows in thousands

December 31

ZSIK 2012

United States 156927 157344

Brazil 9024 1234

South Africa 7203 8973
Australia 5680 9630
Canada 4145 4120

Germany 1541 1538

Total foreign 27593 25495
Total 184520 182839

19 Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

The balance of related after-tax components comprising accumulated other comprehensive income loss is

summarized below in thousands

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Unrecognized pension and post-retirement benefit cost net of tax of

$1498 and $2471 respectively

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

2013

December 31

2012

2484 4679

2410 4177
48941 502

See Note 13 Pension and Retirement Plans for discussion of the amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income related to the Companys Kolberg-Pioneer Inc defined pension plan
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20 Other Income Expense Net

Other income expense net from continuing operations consists of the following in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Investment income 853 116 27

Licensing fees 764 1211 449

Other 320 456 606

Total 1937 1783 1082

21 Business Combinations

On August 10 2011 the Company purchased substantially all of the assets of Protec Technology and

Machinery GmbH Protec German corporation Construction Machinery GmbH Construction

Machinery German corporation and Protec Technology Ltd Protec Ltd Hong Kong corporation

for $3000000 The Company formed new subsidiary Astec Mobile Machinery GmbH AMM located in

Hameln Germany to operate the acquired businesses AMM designs manufactures and markets asphalt

rollers screeds and road widener attachment and distributes products produced by other Company

subsidiaries primarily Roadtec Inc

On October 2011 the Company acquired the GEFCO division of Blue Tee Corp for $30407000 The

Company formed new subsidiary GEFCO Inc to operate the acquired business This purchase resulted

in the recognition of $3877000 of amortizable intangible assets which consist of trade names 15 year useful

life and customer relationships year useful life The effective date of the purchase was October 2011

and the results of GEFCO Inc.s operations have been included in the Companys consolidated financial

statements since that date During January 2012 the purchase price allocation was finalized and funds

previously held in escrow were distributed

GEFCO formerly known as George Failing Company was established in 1931 and was leading

manufacturer of portable drilling rigs and related equipment for the water well environmental groundwater

monitoring construction mining and shallow oil gas exploration and production industries GEFCO Inc

continues to manufacture Failing SpeedStar and King Oil Tools equipment from its Enid Oklahoma facilities

The revenue and pre-tax income of Protec Protec Ltd Construction Machinery and GEFCO were not

significant in relation to the Companys 2011 financial statements and would not have been significant on

pro forma basis to any earlier periods

The Company has funded an investment of $12835000 in Astec do Brasil Fabricaçao de Equipamentos

LTDA Astec Brazil located in Vespasiano Minas Gerais Brazil consolidated subsidiary of the Company

When fully funded by both the Company and MDE minority Brazil based shareholder the Company

anticipates 75% ownership in Astec Brazil In 2013 Astec Brazil operated by selling imported products from

other Astec subsidiaries with some equipment assembled locally The Astec Brazil manufacturing facility is

currently under construction and is expected to open for production by mid to late 2014 The expected cost of

the manufacturing facility is approximately $23000000 The acquisition cost of the manufacturing facility
is

being funded by capital contributions and loans from the parent company borrowings from Brazilian bank

and capital contributions by MDE The Company expects to increase its international market penetration in

Brazil and Latin American countries with the aggregate mining and asphalt segments product lines to be

produced in the Astec Brazil manufacturing facility

22 Discontinued Operations

In October 2012 the Company entered into an agreement to sell its American Augers Inc Augers

subsidiary as well as certain assets related to the Trencor large trencher product line of Astec Underground

Inc to The Charles Machine Works Inc of Perry Oklahoma Augers and the Trencor large trencher product

line were part of the Companys Underground Group The sale of Augers included substantially all the assets

and liabilities of Augers and was completed on November 30 2012 for $42940000 net of cash included in

the sale and subject to closing adjustments The Company retained the Augers vertical oil and gas drill rig
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product line and relocated it to Astec Underground the Companys subsidiary located in Loudon Tennessee

The sale of the Trencor product line was immaterial to the transaction and is included in the Companys
consolidated financial statements in continuing operations This divestiture as well as the sale of the small

utility
trencher and drill line of products to Toro earlier in 2012 is part of the Companys strategy to exit the

cyclical underground sector

The Company calculated the post-closing adjustments to the sale price and recorded the resulting $288000

purchase price adjustment in other accrued liabilities in the December 31 2012 consolidated balance sheet

The post-closing adjustment to the sales price was increased to total of $499000 when finalized and paid
in early 2013

The results of operations and the gain on the sale of Augers are presented as discontinued operations for

2012 and 2011 Summarized financial information for Augers is below in thousands

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011

Revenues 53619 47088
Discontinued operations

Operating income before tax 5218 169

Income tax provision benefit 1817 56
Income from operations 3401 225

Gain on sale of subsidiary

Gain on sale of subsidiary before tax 5357 --

Income tax provision 1979 --

Gain on sale of subsidiary 3378 --

Income from discontinued operations 6779 225

The carrying amounts of the major classes of assets and liabilities disposed on November 30 2012 were as
follows in thousands

2012

Assets

Cash 636

Receivables 5334
Inventories 26568
Prepaid and other assets 430

Property and equipment net 13500
Other assets 465

Total assets 46933
Liabilities

Accounts payable 2518
Other liabilities 6484

Total liabilities 9002
Net assets disposed 37931
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Comparison of Year Cumulative Total Return

Assumes Initial Investment of $100

Performance Graph for Astec Industries Inc
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